LOUISIANA COMMISSION ON LAW

ENFORCEMENT

Applicant Hereby Applies to the LCLE for Financial
Support for the Within-Described Project:

LCLE USE ONLY

Receipt Date

Award Date

Subgrant Number(s)

3/6/2013

-- 1106

1. Tyvpe of Funds for

which you are applying

Sexual Assault Services Program (Federal 16.017 SASP )

2. Applicant

Name Of Applicant: Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center

Federal LD: 45-3088168

Parish: East Baton Rouge

Street Address Line 1: 233 Saint Ferdinand Street. Room 210

Address Line 2:

Address Line 3:

City: Baton Rouge

State: LA Zip: 70802-5818

3. Recipient Agencies

Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center

4. Project Director

Name: Ms. Shannon Smith

Title: Administrator
Agency:

Street Address Line 1: 8281 Goodwood Bhd

Address Line 2: Suite I. 2nd Floor

Address Line 3:

City: Baton Rouge

State: LA Zip: 70806-7742

Phone: 225-615-7093 Fax: 225-615-7236 x615

Email: shannon smith(@brstar org

5. Financial Officer

Name: Ms. Racheal E Hebert

Title: Executive Director
Agency:

Street Address Line 1: 8281 Goodwood Blve

Address Line 2: Suite T

Address Line 3:

City: Baton Rouge

State: LA Zip: T0806-7742

Phone: 225-615-7093 x2 Fax: 225-615-7236 x615

Email: racheal hebert@brstar.org

6. Contact

Name: Ms. Racheal E Hebert

Title: Executive Director
Agency:

Street Address Line 1: 8281 Goodwood Blve

Address Line 2: Suite [

Address Line 3:

City: Baton Rouge

State: LA Zip: 70806-7742

Phone: 225-615-7093 x2 Fax: 225-615-7236 x615

Email: racheal hebert@brstar.org

7. Brief Summary of
Project

(Do Not Exceed Space
Provided)

Short Title (May not exceed 50 characters)
Sexual Assault Program

STAR requests funding for a Crisis Services Coordinator to provide direct services to sexual assanlt survivors through legal and medical

adwvocacy, and in person crisis intervention counseling. The Crisis Services Coordinator will help ensure that survivors of sexual assault are

given appropriate services and referrals.

8. Subgrant Budget

TOTAL BUDGET BY CATEGORY

BUDGET CATEGORY AMOUNT

PERSONNEL 21.793.00
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00
TRAVEL (INCLUDING TRAINING) 0.00
EQUIPMENT 0.00
SUPPLIES & OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00
CONSULTANTS 0.00
CONSTRUCTION 0.00
OTHER 0.00
TOTAL 21,793.00

LCLE-200 (08/08)

9. TOTAL BUDGET BY FUND SOURCE

FUND SOURCE AMOUNT | PERCENT
FEDERAL 21,793.00 100%
STATE 0.00

PROJECT INCOME 0.00

INTEREST 0.00

STATE MATCH 0.00

CASH MATCH (NEW APPROP ) 0.00

IN-KIND MATCH 0.00

PROJECT INCOME MATCH 0.00

TOTAL 21,793.00 100%

10. Project Start Date: 4/1/2013

Page 1 of 48

Project End Date: 3/31/2014




SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

11. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Applicant has caused this subgrant application to be executed, attested, and ensealed by its proper

officials, pursuant to legal action authorizing the same to be done.

Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center

DATE NAME OF APPLICANT AGENCY

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL

TITLE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL

NOTE: The original copy must be signed in blue ink.
Titles of all signatories must be mserted.

LCLE USE ONLY

In response to this application, LCLE funds are hereby obligated for the project described by the subgrantee in the referenced
application, subject to applicant acceptance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DATE

Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 2 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106

12. BUDGET DETAILS
A. MASTER BUDGETS

Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

BY RECIPIENT AGENCY YEAR 1 TOTAL
Sexual Trauma Awareness and 21,793.00 21,793.00
Response Center

Total: 21,793.00 21,793.00

Applicant Ageney: Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center

BY CATEGORY YEAR 1 TOTAL
PERSONNEL 21,793.00 21,793.00
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00
TRAVEL (INCLUDING 0.00 0.00
TRAINING)
EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00
SUPPLIES & OPERATING 0.00 0.00
EXPENSES
CONSULTANTS 0.00 0.00
CONSTRUCTION 0.00 0.00
OTHER 0.00 0.00
Total: 21,793.00 21,793.00
BY SOURCE YEAR 1 TOTAL
FEDERAL 21,793.00 21,793.00
STATE 0.00 0.00
PROJECT INCOME 0.00 0.00
INTEREST 0.00 0.00
STATE MATCH 0.00 0.00
CASH MATCH (NEW APPROP.) 0.00 0.00
IN-KIND MATCH 0.00 0.00
PROJECT INCOME MATCH 0.00 0.00
Total; 21,793.00 21,793.00

LCLE-200 (08/08)
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

12. BUDGET DETAILS
A. MASTER
Line Item Details for: Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center

YEAR 1

PERSONNEL
COST
Position: Crisis Services Coordinator
Name: Shannon Smith
Computation: 0.50 21.793.00
Personnel - Year 1 Total: 21,793.00
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
COST
Position:
Name:
Computation: 0.00
Employee Benefits - Year 1 Total: 0.00
SUPPLIES & OPERATING EXPENSES
COST
Supply Item:
Computation: 0.00
Supplies & Operating Expenses - Year 1 Total: 0.00
CONSULTANTS - CONSULTANT
COST
Name / Position:
Service Provided:
Computation: 0.00
Consultants - Consultant - Year 1 Total: 0.00

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 4 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

12. BUDGET DETAILS
A. MASTER
Line Item Details for: Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center

CONSULTANTS - TRAVEL

COST
Consultant:
Location:
Item:
Computation: 0.00
Consultants - Travel - Year 1 Total: 0.00
CONSULTANTS - PRODUCT/SERVICE
COST
Consultant:
Item:
Computation: 0.00
Consultants - Product/Service - Year 1 Total: 0.00

YEAR T TOTAL: 21.795.00

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 5 of 48




SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
A. LCLE Budget Summary No Match

1. Please itemize the Budget Category expenditures.
(Please verify that the Total Amount equals the Calculated Paid Amount )

“ Budget Category Amount Paid with Federal Dollars | Calculated Paid Amounts |

Personnel 21,793
Total_ = 21,793 [} [J

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 6 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
B. LCLE Budget - Personnel

‘ PERSONNEL BUDGET JUSTIFICATION

‘1. Are personnel costs requested?

Yes

2. Are emplovees screened and in compliance with the Louisiana Child Protection Act (LA RS 15:5871.1)7

Yes

3. Are job descriptions for each position attached?

Yes

‘4. Are resumes for each position attached?

Yes

|£l.1. If no, explain why.

5. Explain the need for each position and justify the need for any overtime if requested.

STAR has experienced an increase in clients in need of crisis intervention and support services over the past two years. The Crisis Services Coordinator

allows our agency to provide services to more survivors of sexual assault and their loved ones to help lessen the impact of sexual violence on their lives.

6. Explain the basis of determining the salary for each position.

The Crisis Services Coordinator's salary is based on standards developed by the Louisiana Foundation Against Sexual Assault in 2009,

7. Explain the project duties for each position.

The duties of the Crisis Services Coordinator include: (1) providing direct services to survivors of sexual assault and thetr families on the crisis hotline, in
person crisis intervention counseling, and accompaniment at hospitals, police departments, prosecutor's office, and court; (2) conducting initial intake

assessment for all clients receiving counseling services; and (3) conducting follow-up with all clients.

8. Indicate if personnel will be new or existing personnel. If existing, indicate if the position has been baclkfilled. If this is a continuation application, indicate the
personnel's original status. [Existing personnel is an employee that currently works for the agency, but will now be working on grant activities. If so, the position

from which the emplovee is moved must be filled. If employee is the same from the previous grant, indicate if the employee was originally hired for that position. ]

The application is a continuation of M84-8-001, therefore the grant will contirue with the same person hired for the Crisis Services Coordinator position.

9. Are volunteers used in this project?
No

9.1. Is this a VOCA-funded project?
No

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 7 of 48




SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

9.1.1. If yes, explain the need for an exemption to the requirement of using volunteers.

9.2. Are the volunteers used as in-kind match?

No

9.3. Are volunteers screened in compliance with the Louisiana Child Protection Act (LA R.S. 15:586.1)7

No

9.4. Are volunteers screened in compliance with the Louisiana Adult Protective Services Law (LARS. 1501-1511)7

No

9.5. Briefly describe the duties and functions of the vohmteers. Indicate the number of hours per dutv-function for this project. Duties must directly
relate to the focus of this project.

9.6. Are job descriptions for vohmteers attached?

No

9.7. Are timesheets kept on volunteers?

No

LCLE BUDGET - PERSONNEL related attachments:

File Name: File Description:
risis Services Coordinator Job description.pdf Crisis Services Coordinator Job Description
ﬁhamlon Smith Resume.pdf Shannon Smith Resume

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 8 of 48



CRISIS SERVICES COORDINATOR
JOB DESCRIPTION

Position: Crisis Services Coordinator

Reports to: Executive Director

Hours: 40 hours/week; full-time/exempt

Position Summary: The Crisis Services Coordinator is responsible for managing the daily
operations of the crisis and advocacy services and insuring that all data and client
documentation is appropriately maintained.

RESPONSIBILITIES

Q

Serve as the team leader for the advocacy and crisis services team and facilitate
regularly scheduled advocacy and crisis services team meetings

Work closely with program staff to develop, monitor, evaluate, and revise advocacy and
crisis services protocol as needed

Manage inventory of sexual assault forensic exam (SAFE) kits; serve as the main point of
contact for hospitals regarding delivery of SAFE kits

Provide back-up to for volunteer advocates on a rotational basis with other STAR
program staff

Complete intake assessments with all incoming clients; document services and referrals
provided; conduct thorough case management on all cases to include follow-up
contacts

Work with counselor to discuss referrals and additional assessments with clients
Manage all client data and files

Responsible for maintenance of monthly, quarterly and annual reports related to client
services, statistics, and other services provided by STAR

Conduct training with other agencies (i.e., hospitals, law enforcement) on victim
advocacy, protocol, and responding to sexual assault cases

Assists in the recruitment and training of new volunteer advocates, update of volunteer
training manuals and coordination of volunteer in-service training classes and meetings
Maintain good working relationships with other agencies

Perform other duties as assigned by supervisor

QUALIFICATIONS

O

Degree in social services or related field preferred

One-year minimum experience providing crisis intervention, victim advocacy, working
with volunteers, and office assistance required

Applicant must consent to and successfully complete a full background investigation,
which includes a criminal history check and finger printing

Must have completed, or will complete in the first year of employment, a mandatory 40
hours of sexual violence training; plus 20 hours of continuing education/training annually
Ability to communicate effectively in both written and verbal form required

Ability to maintain accurate and complete files and data collection documentations
Ability to work independently and with a team





O A valid driver’s license and a working, insured vehicle required at the time of
appointment

O Must have knowledge of:

o0 Operations, services, and activities of a victim advocacy program
Effective interviewing, listening, and crisis intervention skills
Community resources and the availability of those resources
Case management principles and practices
Principals and procedures for grant related record keeping
Methods of research, case analysis, and management
Principals and characteristics of victims of crime
Terms and acronyms commonly used in assigned functions
Modern office procedures, methods, and technological equipment
Pertinent Federal, State, and local laws pertaining to area of assignment
English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation

O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0Oo

PAY CLASSIFICATION
$25,000-$40,000 annually

Comparables:

LaFASA SAC Survey Bachelor’s Level Counselor $26,000 - $35,000
LaFASA SAC Survey Master’s Level Counselor $30,000 - $40,000
District Attorney’s Counselor | $28,000 - $35,000





		Crisis Services Coordinator

		job description

		Pay Classification

		Comparables:






Summary of
qualifications

Education

Relevant
professional
experience

Shannon E. Smith
30791 Dunn Road
Denham Springs, LA 70726
shannon.smith.la@gmail.com
(225) 243-5465

e Expertise in the issues of violence against women, interpersonal violence, and oppression
e Experience with victims/survivors of violence, their family members and significant others
e Public speaking, professional training, group presentation, and media relations experience

e Familiarity with the criminal justice system, including the treatment and supervision of sex
offenders

2009 Indiana University-Purdue University Ft. Wayne, IN

Bachelor’s of General Studies
e Honors Student, Dean’s List

April 2007 —Jan. 2012  Connecticut Sexual Assault Crisis Services, Inc. East Hartford, CT

Senior Victim Advocate (Sex Offender Supervision Unit)

e |nitiated and maintained contact with primary and secondary victims in order to provide
ongoing information, support, and referral services, as well as to provide feedback from
victims to the unit to assist in the supervision of the offender

e Attended weekly sex offender treatment groups in order to offer feedback on victim issues and
increase victim empathy, and participated in decision-making in regards to offenders’
probation and treatment progress

e Established relationships with offender family members, partners, and support people in order
to provide them with information, education, support, and referrals, as well as to assist in the
reunification process

e  Established, promoted, and facilitated a monthly support group for the family and friends of
sex offenders on probation

e Participated in community education and professional training regarding the Sex Offender
Supervision Unit, community notification and sex offender registration, community
involvement in offender supervision, victim issues, prevention and risk reduction, and
available resources

e Created new resources for the program, including advocate training manuals and clients
brochures

e  Contributed to development of evolving data collection and reporting system

e Assisted Director of Advocacy with supervision, mentoring and leadership of Victim
Advocates

Dec. 2005 — Dec. 2006 ~ Task Force on Family Violence/REACH, Inc. Murphy, NC

Court Advocate/Sexual Assault & Domestic Violence Advocate

e Personal and court advocacy for victims of domestic violence and sexual assault, including
crisis intervention, assistance with filing Domestic Violence Protective Orders and No-Contact
Orders, information on both civil and criminal court processes, court accompaniment, referral
and linkage to appropriate community resources

e Community education, outreach, and training on issues related to domestic violence and
sexual assault

e Collection and reporting of demographics and outcomes necessary for grants

e Researched new funding opportunities for program and clients, and completed necessary
applications or assisted in grant writing process

e Developed and conducted professional training of nursing staff at local hospital

e Regular coverage of 24-hour crisis line and on-call duties

Oct. 2005 - Dec. 2006 Task Force on Family Violence/REACH, Inc. Murphy, NC
Domestic Violence/Sexual Assault Support Group Facilitator





Community
activities

e  Facilitation of two weekly support groups for victims/survivors of domestic violence & sexual
assault

e  Promotion of support groups through advertising and community networking
e Collection of demographic information for statistical reporting
e Referral of clients to appropriate community resources

Sept. 2003 — July 2004 Partnership for Families, Children & Adults Chattanooga, TN

Volunteer Coordinator (Family Violence and Sexual Assault Programs)

e Recruitment, training, and management of volunteers for Family Violence and Sexual Assault
programs, including scheduling volunteers to ensure coverage of 24-hour hotline and crisis
situations

e Supervision of college interns and high school students with service learning commitments
e Coordination of public education for Family Violence and Sexual Assault programs
e  Statistical record-keeping of educational outreach and volunteer hours

e Event planning and coordination for Sexual Assault Awareness Month, Victims’ Rights Week,
Volunteer Recognition events, and Holiday events for Crisis Services

e Provided interviews and statistical information to television, radio, and newspaper media
e Researched new funding opportunities for program and assisted in grant applications
Feb. 2003 — Sept. 2003 Partnership for Families, Children & Adults Chattanooga, TN

Community Educator (Sexual Assault Crisis and Resource Center)

e Community education, outreach, and training on issues related to sexual assault, sexual
harassment, and violence against women, including instruction in personal safety and self-
defense

e Professional training of medical interns through collaboration with local teaching hospital

e Coverage of Sexual Assault Crisis and Resource Center, including crisis coverage, evidence
handling, and regular on-call duties

e Management of 24-hour schedule of volunteer Personal Advocates

e  Statistical record-keeping of educational outreach and volunteer hours

e Provided interviews and statistical information to television, radio, and newspaper media
Dec. 1999 — Oct. 2000 Fort Wayne Women’s Bureau Ft. Wayne, IN

Outreach Coordinator/Crisis Counselor
e Public education, outreach, and media relations for the Rape Awareness Program

e Co-presenter of the Assault Awareness for Teens Program, a program about sexual assault,
dating violence and personal safety for middle and high school students

e  Crisis counselor for the Rape Awareness Program, including regular on-call duties

e Assisted the Director of Counseling in volunteer recruitment, training, and management
e  Collection and reporting of demographics and outcomes necessary for grants

e Researched new funding opportunities for program and assisted in grant applications

Member, 30" Judicial District Domestic Violence-Sexual Assault Alliance, Cherokee Co., NC,
2005-2006

Member, Sexual Assault Response Team, Chattanooga, TN, 2003-2004

Member, Coalition Against Domestic & Community Violence of Greater Chattanooga,
Chattanooga, TN, 2003-2004

Member, Technology Committee for the Violence Against Women Act, Washington, D.C., 2003

Member, Sexual Assault Task Force, Mayor’s Commission on Rape, Domestic Violence, and
Sexual Harassment, Ft. Wayne, IN, 2000





Volunteer
experience

References

Member, Team SOAR, SOAR (Speaking Out About Rape), Orlando, FL, 2006-present

Member, RAINN Speakers Bureau, RAINN (Rape, Abuse, Incest National Network), Washington,
D.C., 2006-present

Volunteer, Jane Doe No More, Waterbury, CT, 2009-2011
Member, CONNSACS VSAC (Victim/Survivor Advisory Council), East Hartford, CT, 2009-2012

Hotline Volunteer, YWCA of New Britain Sexual Assault Crisis Services, New Britain, CT, 2007-
2011

Personal Advocate, Sexual Assault Crisis and Resource Center, Partnership for Families, Children
& Adults, Chattanooga, TN, 2001-2005

Hotline Volunteer, Family Violence & Sexual Assault Hotline, Partnership for Families, Children
& Adults, Chattanooga, TN, 2003-2005

Crisis Counselor/Advocate, Rape Crisis Hotline, Fort Wayne Women’s Bureau, Ft. Wayne, IN,
1998-1999

Available upon request






SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
C. LCLE Budget - Fringe Benefits

‘ FRINGE BENEFITS JUSTIFICATION

‘1. Is personnel costs requested?

Yes

2. Please check the appropriate response regarding fringe benefits.

All fringe benefits will be paid by the Applicant Agency

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 9 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
D. SASP Budget Travel

TRAVEL
Travel is allowed for personnel listed in the Personnel Section of application that provides direct services. Mileage is unallowable in agency-owned vehicles.

Charges cannot exceed established agency travel reates, but in no case can travel expenses exceed the current Louisiana Travel Guidelines. Out-of-state

travel is not allowed.

1. Is travel expenses being requested

No

‘2. Are requested travel expenses for local travel?

No

|2.1. State who will travel and the purpose for local travel

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 10 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
E. LCLE Budget - Equipment

EQUIPMENT JUSTIFICATION

1. Is equipment requested for this project?

No

1.1. If ves, explain the need for each equipment item requested.

1.2. Explain the procurement procedures.

|1.3. Explain the equipment's relationship to this project.

‘2. Is this a request for sole source?

No

2.1. If ves, explain why sole source is needed. Also, refer to instructions on requesting sole source.

INOTE: Sole Source request must be attached to this application.

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 11 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
F. LCLE Budget - Supplies & Operating Expenses

‘ SUPPLIES & OPERATING EXPENSES JUSTIFICATION

‘1. Are supplies requested for this project?

No

|1.1. If ves, explain the need and use of each major supply type requested.

1.2. Explain the relationship of the supplies to this project.

2. Are operating expenses requested for this project?

No

2.1. If ves, explain the need of each operating expense requested.

2.2. Explain the relationship of the operating expenses to this project.

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 12 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
G. LCLE Budget - Consultant

CONSULTANTS JUSTIFICATION

Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that paid for similar services in the marlet place. Travel, lodging, and

meals, if applicable, should be figured in addition to compensation. All expenses must be included in the LCLE approved contract.

1. Are consultants requested for this project?

No

‘2. Explain the purpose of each consultant or other contractual services requested.

‘3. Explain why each service requested is necessary and cost effective for this project.

4. Explain the procurement procedures and basis for determing rate of pay.

5. Is this request for sole source?

No

5.1. If ves, explain why sole source is needed. Also refer to instructions on requesting sole source.

INOTE: You must attach the sole source request to this application.

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 13 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
H. LCLE Program Narrative
‘ PROBLEM DEFINITION ‘

‘1. Are you a Law Enforcement agency? ‘

No

|1.1. If Yes, was the previous calendar yeat's (January-December) Uniform Crime Report data submitted? |

A response to this question is optional and no answer was provided.

1.2. If not submitted, please state the date when the UCR data will be submitted.

2. Identify the nature and magnitude of the specific problem existing in your particular community that needs to be addressed through this proposed project.
Document the need, not the symptoms or solutions. Be sure to include current valid local data or state data, if local data is not available, to support

the justification. Give the source and date of your information. State the needs of your agency and the needs of the victims in your area as related to this

problem and justify the need for the proposed project.

According to the Rape, Abuse and Incest National Network (RAINN), upwards of 50-80% of sexual assaults are not reported to law enforcement
(RATNN, 2012). In the past vear since STAR implemented this SASP-finded program, our center has seen an increase in cases. This was confirmed by
a crime statistics brief released by the Baton Rouge City Police Depariment in February of 2013, which showed that rape reporiing increased 25% from
2011 to 2012. Between July 1, 2011 and June 30, 2012, STAR. served 269 primary victims through direct counseling and crisis intervention support. In
addition, STAR. provided medical and criminal justice systems advocacy to 152 primary victims between July 1, 2011 and June 30, 2012, Since July 1,
2012 - January 31, 2013, STAR has served 194 primary victims through direct counseling and crisis intervention support, and has provided medical and
criminal justice systems advocacy to 120 primary victims. Given these numbers, projections indicate that the need for STAR's counseling, advocacy and

support services continues to increase along with the increased reporting trend.

3. Describe the gap in community resources and how the gap was identified. Explain what need is created by this gap in services/programs.

STAR serves the Greater Baton Rouge area, inchiding West Baton Rouge, Iberville, East and West Feliciana, Ascension, Point Coupee and Livingston
Parishes. Together, this service area includes over 400,000 in the metropolitan area and beyond. STAR is the only sexual assault program within these
seven parishes. Because our services are free and confidential, and we are experiencing an increase in our caseload, we are in need of continuation of our

Crisis Services Coordinator position to provide immediate support, crisis intervention and advocacy to sexual assault victims and their loved ones.

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 14 of 48




SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
I. LCLE Goals

1. The primary mission of all projects is to have a positive impact on the victims, not just to accumulate statistics on how many are served. Based on the

problem identified, BRIEFLY state what the project hopes to accomplish. Do this by providing a clear statement of the effect this project will have on the
problem.

The goals of this project are to 1) increase service availability to sexual assault survivors in need of crisis intervention counseling and advocacy and 2)

improve survivor's experience with the criminal justice system.

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 15 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
J. LCLE Objectives

OBJECTIVES

1. Provide at least TWO (2) measureable objectives for EACH goal. Objectives need to be measureable, observable aspects of the program. Identify

'who, what will change and by how much. Use absolute numbers, not percentages and be sure to include a haseline number.

Goal 1: Increase service availability to sexual assault survivors in need of crisis intervention counseling and advocacy.

Objective 1.1: Continue employment of the Crisis Services Coordinator.

Objective 1.2: Increase amount of clients who receive services by 25%.

Goal 2: Improve survivor's expetience with the criminal justice system.

Objective 2.1: Increase the number of victims who are accompanied to the police department, prosecutor's office, and/or court by 25%.

Objective 2.2: Increase the number of victims who are accompanied to the hospital by 25%.
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
K. LCLE Activities

ACTIVITIES

1. List the specific activities and/or services to be provided that will accomplish the objectives. Must include a timetable for achieving the various components of|

vour project. Timetable must cover the entire grant period. This mmst relate back to the Goals and Objectives described earlier for vour project. fthisis a

training project, please state below that you are completing the Training Program information.

The following activities will occur between April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014:

1. Continue to reach out to community partners, such as law enforcement, hospitals, and non-profit agencies, to make them aware of service availability.

2. Create a streamlined intake process for new clients.

3. Enhance crisis services and advocacy practices by implementing new protocols to ensure effective service delivery.

4. Collect data for reporting to LCLE as needed.
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
L. LCLE Prior Results

PRIOR RESULTS

(For Continnation Projects Onlv)

1. Is this a continuation project?

Yes

2. Based on the objectives of the previous application, what were the measurable outcomes? (Refer to the previous project's performance stated in the quarterly

monitoring progress reports and other additional information.)

Based on reports submitted to LCLE for the SASP end of vear report, the Crisis Services Coordinator provided support and advocacy to 127
additional victims during 2012. The goals stated in the previous year's project were to increase suwrvivors given crisis support and accompaniment by 126.
Considering that the SASP report included numbers only from April - December of 2012, T expect that our project (which is set to end in March 2013),
will exceed anticipated goal expectations.

3. Did the project work as expected? Please explain why.

The project worked better than expected, considering that in only one year, the Baton Rouge community experienced a 25% increase in rape reporting.

4. Have the original goals and objectives been revised?
No

4.1. If Yes, explain what changes will be made in the continuation of this project and why?

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 18 of 48




SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
M. LCLE Evaluation

EVALUATION AND DISSEMINATION OF REFORTING

1. Pre-test, post-test and/or evaluation form(s) are attached.

Yes

1.1. If no, explain why.

2. From who will the data be collected - what is the source?

Data will be collected from all clients of STAR who receive support and advocacy services.

3. When will the data be collected?

The initial data will be collected upon the client's first visit to STAR for crisis intervention services by the use of a trauma symptom checldist pre-test/post-
test. Once a client terminates services with the agency. the client will be asked to complete a client satisfaction survey. Both the checldist and survey are

attached.

4. Who will collect and analvze the data?

The Crisis Services Coordinator will collect and input the data. The data will be analvzed and submitted to the STAR Executive Director, Board of
Directors and LCLE for review.

5. Who will be responsible for submitting the data for the Quarterly and Anmual Progress™Monitoring reports? Please state their name and contact information
below.

[ D | Name | Phone Number Email Address |
5.1  |Shannon Smith (225) 615-7093 shannon.smith@brstar.org |

6. Following evaluation, who and how will updating or revising of the project's strategy be accomplished?

After analyzing the data collected, the STAR Executive Director, along with the STAR Board of Directors, will review the results and update or revise

the strategy as needed to ensure that best practices are used in serving survivors of sexual assault.

7. Name the recipients who will recefve the project's results and the schedule of reporting (i.e. monthly, quarterly, vearly). Recipients MUST state the Louisiana
Commission on Law Enforcement will receive Quartetly Progress/Monitoring Reports and expenditure reports quarterly/monthly as specified at award time.

Recipients should also include, if applicable, board of directors, applicant agency (if different from implementing agency), courts with jurisdiction, etc.

The Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement will recetve Quarterly Progress Reports and expenditure reports as specified at award time. In addition,
the STAR Board of Directors will receive Quarterly and Annual Progress Reports describing the project's success in achieving the goals and objectives

stated above.

LCLE EVALUATION related attachments:

File Name: File Description:
ﬁa‘dsfaction Survey.pdf Satisfaction Survey

rauma Symptom Checklist.pdf Trauma Symptom Checklist
ﬁiqua] Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) Certification.pdf EEOQOP Certificate
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March 2013

CLIENT SATISFACTION SURVEY

STAR is eager to receive your feedback about the services we provide. Your feedback will be used to
improve the quality and effectiveness of our program. If you wish to discuss your experiences at STAR with
someone further, please talk to your counselor, or contact Racheal Hebert, Executive Director at (225) 615-
7093. Please complete this questionnaire and return it to STAR.

na Awareness & Response

Instructions: Place an “x” in the box that best describes how you feel about each statement. Choose “No
Opinion/NA” when you have no opinion or the statement does not apply to you. Please feel free to make
additional comments to explain or justify your response to any question.

Strongly
Agree

Agree | Disagree | Strongly
Disagree

No
Opinion/NA

STAR office staff was courteous, friendly,
professional, and helpful.

STAR office staff provided crisis services in a
confidential manner.

| was able to schedule an appointment with the
counselor within a reasonable time frame.

My counseling sessions normally began on time as
scheduled.

My counseling sessions were rarely if ever
cancelled or postponed by my counselor.

There were no languages, communication, or
cultural problems between my counselor or office
staff and me.

The counselor | spoke with addressed the
questions and concerns | identified as important.

The counselor | spoke with showed concern for my
well-being.

The counselor and | established counseling goals.

The counselor | spoke with explained and
recommended the steps | needed to take to
accomplish my goals.

| met all or nearly all of the goals established.

The 24-hour hotline was helpful.

Group counseling was helpful.

| would recommend STAR to a friend or relative in
need of the assistance provided.

How did you learn about STAR? (Check all that apply)

ODO00D

Law enforcement
Newspaper, Radio, Television
Doctor/Hospital
Friend/Family member

Additional Comments:

a School
Q Another Organization
a Other:

Completion of this form is strictly voluntary, and the results will be kept confidential and anonymous. Your

responses will be compiled with the responses of other clients in a statistical format that will have no ties to

your identity. Your counselor will neither see nor have access to your completed survey at any time.
We thank you for your time and consideration.

STAR ] 8281 Goodwood Blvd., Suite | | Baton Rouge, LA 70806 |

(225) 615-7093 | www.brstar.org




http://www.brstar.org/




Name:

Date:

Trauma Awareness & Response

TRAUMA SYMPTOM CHECKLIST

Please circle the appropriate number for the symptoms you may have experienced in
the last two months or since your most recent trauma:

0 = Never 1 = Rarely 2 = Sometimes 3 = Often

Headaches

Insomnia (trouble getting to sleep)
Weight loss (without dieting)

Stomach problems

Feeling isolated from others

“Flashbacks” (sudden, vivid memories)
Restless sleep

Low sex drive

9. Anxiety attacks

10. Sexual overactivity

11. Loneliness

12. Nightmares

13. “Spacing out” (going away in your mind)
14. Sadness

15. Dizziness

16. Trouble controlling your temper

17. Waking up early and not able to get back to sleep
18. Uncontrollable crying

19. Fear of men

20. Not feeling rested in the morning

21. Trouble getting along with others

22. Memory problems

23. Desire to physically hurt yourself

24. Fear of women

25. Waking up in the middle of the night

26. Passing out

27. Feeling that things are “unreal”

28. Unnecessary or frequent bathing/washing
29. Feeling inferior/worthless

30. Feeling tense all the time

31. Desire to physically hurt others

32. Feelings of guilt

33. Feelings that you are not always in your body
34. Have trouble breathing
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		Date:   _________

		TRAUMA SYMPTOM CHECKLIST




CERTIFICATION FORM

Recipient Name and Address: §TAR, 8281 Goodwood Blvd., Baton Rouge, LA 70806

Grant Title: SASP Grant Number: Award Amount: $21, 793

Contact Person Name and Title; Racheal Hebert, Exec. Director Phone Number: 25) 615-7093 ext 2
e T T T e T P R e e S | e S e Fe K e S
e e e e e e e e e et

Federal regulations require recipients of financial assistance from the Office of Justice Programs (OJP), its component agencies, and the
Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) to prepare, maintain on file, submit to OJP for review, and implement an Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) in accordance with 28 C.F.R §§ 42.301-.308. The regulations exempt some recipients from all of
the EEOP requirements. Other recipients, according to the regulations, must prepare, maintain on file and implement an EEOP, but they
do not need to submit the EEOP to OJP for review. Recipients that claim a complete exemption from the EEOP requirement must
complete Section A below. Recipients that claim the limited exemption from the submission requirement, must complete Section B
below. A recipient should complete either Section A or Section B, not both. If a recipient receives multiple OJP or COPS grants,
please complete a form for each grant, ensuring that any EEOP recipient certifies as completed and on file (if applicable) has been
prepared within two years of the latest grant. Please send the completed form(s) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs,
U.S. Department of Justice, 810 7™ Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531. For assistance in completing this form, please call (202)307-

0690 or TTY (202) 307-2027.
Section A- Declaration Claiming Complete Exemption from the EEOP Requirement. Please check all the boxes that
apply.

X Recipient has less than 50 employees, O Recipient is an Indian tribe,
xa Recipient is a non-profit organization, O  Recipient is an educational institution, or
m] Recipient is a medical institution, Gt Recipient is receiving an award less than $25,000
I, Racheal Hebert, Exec. Director [responsible official], certify that

[recipient] is not required to

Sexual Trauma Awareness & Response (STAR)
prepare an EEOP for the reason(s) checked above, pursuant to 28 C.F.R §42.302. I further certify that STAR
[recipient] will comply with applicable Federal civil rights

laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the deliv@i,:\g seyvices. :
Racheal Hebert, Exec. Director ‘ W 2|\ I (>
Print or type Name and Title Signature Date

Section B- Declaration Claiming Exemption from the EEOP Submission Requirement and Certifying That an
EEQP Is on File for Review.

If a recipient agency has 50 or more employees and is receiving a single award or subaward for $25,000 or more, but less than $500,000,
then the recipient agency does not have to submit an EEOP to OJP for review as long as it certifies the following (42 C.F.R. § 42.305):

I [responsible official], certify that

the [recipient],which has 50 or more
employees and is receiving a single award or subaward for $25,000 or more, but less than $500,000, has formulated an
EEOP in accordance with 28 CFR §42.301, et seq., subpart E. I further certify that the EEOP has been formulated and
signed into effect within the past two years by the proper authority and that it is available for review. The EEOP is on file in
the office of: [organization],

at [address],for review by the public and
employees or for review or audit by officials of the relevant state planning agency or the Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, U. S. Department of Justice, as required by relevant laws and regulations.

Print or type Name and Title Signature Date

OMB Approval No. 1121-0140 Expiration Date: 12/31/12






SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
N. LCLE Resources

RESOURCES

1. Describe the facilities and additional resources available to this project. Include the physical facility where services are provided. If applicable, list other
resources available to this project, i.e. equipment, supplies, staff, etc.

STAR will provide the physical space to house the Crisis Services Coordinator at 8281 Goodwood Blvd., Suite I, Baton Rouge, LA 70806. The Crisis
Services Coordinator will also receive all necessary furniture, equipment, and supplies to complete the project, to be provided by STAR.
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
0. LCLE Collaboration/Consultation

COLLABORATION/CONSULTATION

Law enforcement, prosecution, the courts, probation and parole agencies, and community providers must consult with each other.

1. Describe the process used to consult, coordinate, and collaborate with each agency.

STAR is supported by the 19th Judicial District Attorney's Office, the Baton Rouge Police Depariment, the East Baton Rouge Coroner, and the East
Baton Rouge Sheriff's Office. Letiers of support and cooperative agreements are attached which detail our efforts to consult, coordinate, and collaborate.

2. The following support documents are attached.

Three current letters of support.

Cooperative AgreementMemorandum of Understanding

LCLE COLLABORATION/CONSULTATION related attachments:

File Name: File Description:
etters of Support.pdf Three letters of support
EA EBR Sheriff pdf CEA - EBR Sherift
ﬁ:EA - BR City-Parish.pdf CEA - BR City Parish
EA - EBRDA pdf CEA - EBRDA
ﬁ:EA - EBR Coroner.pdf CEA - EBR Coroner
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DISTRICT ATTORNEY, 19TH JuDICIAL DISTRICT
East BATON ROUGE PARISH

November 28, 2011

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is written in support of the Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center's (STAR)
application for VAWA grant funding. As the District Attorney of East Baton Rouge Parish, I
support the efforts of the Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center (STAR) to provide
vital crisis intervention counseling and advocacy to sexual assault survivors in East Baton Rouge
Parish. On numerous occasions, my office has relied upon the well-trained STAR staff to assist
crime victims during the prosecution of their cases. The support they provide to victims is

immeasurable.

STAR's Executive Director, Jane Wood, has led the agency for over 20 years and has helped
strengthen our community connections with hospitals and law enforcement, as well as with
partnering non-profits. Dr. Randall Brown, Medical Director, has developed best practices in
evidence collection and the delivery of medical services for survivors of sexual assault. The
efforts of these individuals and the STAR team as a whole ensure that this organization
maintains the highest standards of victim service delivery, making STAR one of the top sexual

assault centers in the state.

The addition of a Crisis Services Coordinator to the STAR staff will improve our community by
ensuring that no victims in need of services are left behind. East Baton Rouge Parish is very
fortunate to have STAR as a resource. Their staff is always willing goes above and beyond the

call of duty to assist my office.

Please feel free to contact me if additional information is needed.

C. Moore, III

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY
222 ST. Louis STREET * STH FLOOR ¢ BATON ROUGE, LA 70802
WWW.EBRDA.ORG * PHONE: 225-389-3400 « Fax: 225-389-7860
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SHERIFF
EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH
POST OFFICE BOX 3277
BATON ROUGE, LA 70821
SIO J. GAUTREAUX, it : ees.ass.zaa0o0
FAX 225.388-5032

SHERIFF & TAX COLLECTOR

November 29, 2011

To Whom It May Concern:

I write this letter in support of the grant request for {STAR) the Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response

Center.

This center provides valuable crisis intervention counseling and advocacy for sexual assault
victims/survivors in East Baton Rouge Parish. As the Victim Services Coordinator for the East Baton
Rouge Parish Sheriff’s Office and a Board Member on Louisiana’s Crime Victims Reparations Board | have

worked very closely with Jane Wood and her staff.

Jane Wood and her staff are highly trained in this area and | rely on this expertise when | have a victim
of sexual assault in contact with my office. Feedback from victims that | have referred to STAR has
always been very positive with only the highest compliments concerning the service and assistance they

received from the staff.

Jane Wood and the staff of STAR are very active in the community concerning victim awareness and
outreach programs. Our office sponsors victim's awareness programs and | see them participating in .
other programs sponsored by other advocacy groups throughout the year, not to mention the programs
they sponsor to raise awareness concerning sexual assault.

The staff has been willing to assist me every time [ have contacted them; they are a vital asset to this
community in victim services.

Please feel free to contact me if you have further questions.

Sincerely,

chb St ‘»?j‘f”""

Sgt. Caro!yn Stapleton
Victim Services Coordinator
East Baton Rouge Sheriff’s Office





~ EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH CORONER’S OFFICE o

March 3, 2013

Racheal Hebert, Executive Director
Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response

8281 Goodwood Blvd., Suite |-2
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

Dear Ms. Hebert:

On behalf of the East Baton Rouge Parish Coroner’s Office, | am submitting a letter of support for the
Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center’s (STAR) advocacy, counseling and education
services for sexual assault victims. As a partnering organization, our office relies on your trained staff
and volunteers to provide support to sexual assault victims during forensic medical exams.

As an organization that is tasked with providing forensic medical exams to sexual assault victims, our
office works closely with STAR in a number of ways; these include:
e Working collaboratively with STAR as part of Baton Rouge’s Sexual Assault Response Team
(SART) to address and solve problems with service delivery to sexual assault victims
e Utilizing STAR advocates to provide support to sexual assault victims and their loved ones
during forensic exams
e Referring victims and their loved ones to STAR for counseling and support services

We look forward to the continued partnership of STAR and the East Baton Rouge Parish Coroner's
Office to provide support and safety to sexual assault victims and to promote prevention of sexual
violence in the Greater Baton Rouge community.

Sincerely,

William “Beau” Clark, M.D.
Coroner
Parish of East Baton Rouge

4030 T.B. Hearndon Avenue ¢ Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70807 » 225-389-3047






COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT

This Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered on this 42 ,ES day of

2011, by and between the Parties, defined exclusively as the following two entities,
d referred to individually as “Party” or collectively as “the Parties™:

Sexual Trauma and Awareness Response Center, LLC, formally chartered with
the Louisiana Secretary of State as a non-profit limited liability company

("STAR”) and represented by Ann Guedry, its board President, duly authorized
by a resolution of the STAR Board, a copy of which is attached and made a part

hereof for reference;
and

The duly elected Sheriff for the Parish of East Baton Rouge, Sheriff Sid J.
Gautreaux, III

ALL PARTIES DECLARE AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS, the District Attorney established the Stop Rape Crisis Center in 1975 and has
continued its operations through the present day as the Rape Crisis Center using funds from his
office that today total two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) annually and employs 3 persons
including a director, a sexual assault counselor, and a volunteer/community outreach coordinator.

- WHEREAS, since 1975 the Sheriff for the Parish of East Baton Rouge has been an integral

partner with the District Attorney in efforts to ensure this nationally recognized center provides
leadership for and develops best practices for responding to the needs of victims of sexual assault
and for assisting law enforcement in the investigation and prosecution sexual assault

perpetrators.

WHEREAS, the purposes of this center include supporting victims of sexual assault through the
application of the best practices to reduce psychological and physical trauma of victims, to
support the community through prevention and education efforts, and to coordinate criminal
justice agency efforts to increase the reporting of sexual assault and improve the investigation,
prosecution and conviction of sexual assault perpetrators.

WHEREAS, this Cooperative Endeavor Agreement is for the mutual benefits, advantages, and
conveniences to the citizens of Louisiana, specifically the citizens of East Baton Rouge Parish,
by the continued operation of a Sexual Trauma and Awareness Response Center to lead efforts to

respond to victims of sexual assault and convict their perpetrators.

WHEREAS, the expected benefit of the Center to the public and to law enforcement is greater
than or commensurate with the amount of the contribution by the Parties.






NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties
hereto agree as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals.

The foregoing preliminary Recitals are incorporated herein by reference and are considered an
integral part of this Agreement.

2. Financial Support

For a period of three years commencing with execution of this document, the Sheriff agrees to
provide an annual contribution of at least $20,000, due no later than December 31st of each
calendar year preceeding a calendar year of operation for STAR. Should STAR cease operations
at any time, all unexpended funds remaining from this contribution by the Sheriff shall be

returned to the Sheriff.
3. Multijurisdictional Agency Support

The Sheriff will continue during the Term of this agreement to participate and solicit the
participation of other criminal justice agencies to continue the operation of multijurisdictional
panel charged with continually examining and improving law enforcement's response to sexual
assault crimes.

4, Agreement Term

This Agreement shall be for an initial period of three years, commencing on January 1, 2012
ending on December 31, 2014 (“Term”).

The Parties agree that Year three of this Agreement will be an evaluation point for the
continuation of this Agreement.

This Agreement may be extended beyond the initial Term by mutual agreement only as
memorialized in writing by the Parties.

5. Indemnification

To the extent allowed by Louisiana law, each Party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall fully indemnify
and hold harmless the other Parties and the employees, agents, contractors, and subcontractors of
the other Parties against all logses, claims, damages, liabilities, penalties, obligations and
expenses, including, without limitation costs for counsel, when incurred, incidental to, caused by,
connected with, relating to, arising out of, or based upon, directly or indirectly, Indemnifying
Party’s use of, and/or activities on, the Property or the use of, and/or activities on, the Property of
Indemnifying Party’s employees, contractors, or subcontractors.

All the foregoing indemnification provisions shall apply to permitted uses, as well as uses that
are not permitted under this Agreement.






Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this Agreement, each Party
acknowledges that the Indemnifying Party’s obligation to indemnify and hold the other Parties
harmless under this Paragraph shall not extend to any loss to the extent arising out of the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of the other Parties or any of its employees, agents, contractors,
or subcontractors of the other Parties.

6. Right to Audit

Any Party to this agreement shall have the right to personally, or through the direction of others
on their behalf, audit and inspect the books, data, and records of STAR that pertain to the

monetary contribution provided under this Agreement.

7. Notice

Any and all Notice required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective
immediately upon personal delivery, subject to verification of service or acknowledgement of
receipt, or three (3) days after mailing via Certified Mail, receipt requested, to the following

addresses:
Sheriff

Sid J. Gautreaux, III
100 St. Ferdinand Street
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

STAR

Ann Guedry

Board President
STARLLC

233 St. Ferdinand Street
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

Each party shall immediately inform all other parties of any changes in personnel or address for
the purpose of sending required notices.





IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties hereto have signed their names on this erd day of

M% 2011, in the presence of the undersigned competent witnesses:

Sheriff,
b 5 Parish of East Baton Rouge
JoHnston .

m S Co— By:
Dvhcakg. I(ea.‘,(’

. Gaufreaux;, III Sheriff

Sexual Trauma and Response Center,

LLC
;ﬂ7 hinsta
Q« Q—SV\ By: r‘-c Zéwu
Dvn% S. Keo 0 , President
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COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT

2012, by and between the Parties, defined exclusively as the following entities,
and referred to individually as “Party” or collectively as “the Parties™:

T?{S Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered on this _L?Lday of

Sexual Trauma and Awareness Response Center, LLC, formally chartered with
the Louisiana Secretary of State as a non-profit limited lability company and
represented by Mary Erlingson, its board President, duly authorized by a
resolution of the STAR Board, a copy of which is attached and made a part hereof
for reference ("STAR”);

The City of Baton Rouge, Parish of East Baton Rouge (“City-Parish”),
represented by Melvin "Kip" Holden, and the Chief of Police for the Baton Rouge
Police Department, Chief Donald "Dewayne" White.

ALL PARTIES DECLARE AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS, the District Attorney established the Stop Rape Crisis Center in 1975 and has
continued its operations through the present day as the Rape Crisis Center using funds from his
office that today total two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) annually and employs three
persons including a director, a sexual assault counselor, and a volunteer/community outreach
coordinator.

WHEREAS, since 1975 the City-Parish, through the Mayor-President and the Chief of the Baton
Rouge Police Department has been an integral partner with the District Attorney in efforts to
ensure this nationally recognized center provides leadership for and develops best practices for
responding to the needs of victims of sexual assault and for assisting law enforcement in the
investigation and prosecution sexual assault perpetrators,

WHEREAS, the purposes of this center include supporting victims of sexual assault through the
application of the best practices to reduce psychological and physical trauma of victims, to
support the community through prevention and education efforts, and to coordinate criminal
justice agency efforts to increase the reporting of sexual assault and improve the investigation,
prosecution and conviction of sexual assault perpetrators.

WHEREAS, this Cooperative Endeavor Agreement is for the mutual benefits, advantages, and
conveniences to the citizens of Louisiana, specifically the citizens of East Baton Rouge Parish,
by the continued operation of a Sexual Trauma and Awareness Response Center to lead efforts to
respond to victims of sexual assault and convict their perpetrators.

WHEREAS, the expected benefit of the Center to the public and to law enforcement is greater
than or commensurate with the amount of the contribution by the Parties.





NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties
hereto agree as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals.

The foregoing preliminary Recitals are incorporated herein by reference and are considered an
integral part of this Agreement.

2. Financial Support

For a period of three years commencing with execution of this document, the City-Parish agrees
to provide an annual contribution of $20,000, due no later than December 3 1st of each calendar
year preceding a calendar year of operation for STAR. Should STAR cease operations at any
time, all unexpended funds remaining from this contribution by the City-Parish shall be returned
to the City-Parish.

The funding is subject to the appropriate funding and appropriation procedures by the
Metropolitan Council. In no event will the City-Parish be responsible for any sums due under
this Agreement if the Metropolitan Council does not appropriate funds for this purpose.

3. Multijurisdictional Agency Support

The City-Parish, through the Chief of Police will continue during the Term of this agreement to
participate and solicit the participation of other criminal justice agencies to continue the
operation of multijurisdictional panel charged with continually examining and improving law
enforcement's response to sexual assault crimes.

4, Agreement Term

This Agreement shall be for an initial period of three years, commencing on January 1, 2012
ending on December 31, 2014 (“Term”).

The Parties agree that year three of this Agreement will be an evaluation point for the
continuation of this Agreement.

This Agreement may be extended beyond the initial term by mutual agreement only as
memorialized in writing by the Parties.

5. Indemnification

To the extent allowed by Louisiana law, each Party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall fully indemnify
and hold harmless the other Parties and the employees, agents, contractors, and subcontractors of
the other Parties against all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, penalties, obligations and
expenses, including, without limitation costs for counsel, when incurred, incidental to, caused by,
connected with, relating to, arising out of| or based upon, directly or indirectly, Indemnifying






Party’s use of, and/or activities on, the Property or the use of, and/or activities on, the Property of
Indemnifying Party’s employees, contractors, or subcontractors.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this Agreement, each Party
acknowledges that the Indemnifying Party’s obligation to indemnify and hold the other Parties
harmless under this Paragraph shall not extend to any loss to the extent arising out of the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of the other Parties or any of its employees, agents, contractors,
or subcontractors of the other Parties.

6. Right to Audit

Any Party to this agreement shall have the right to personally, or through the direction of others
on their behalf, audit and inspect the books, data, and records of STAR that pertain to the
monetary contribution provided under this Agreement.

7. Notice

Any and all Notice required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective
immediately upon personal delivery, subject to verification of service or acknowledgement of
receipt, or three (3) days after mailing via Certified Mail, receipt requested, to the following
addresses:

Mayor

Melvin "Kip" Holden
Mayor-President

City of Baton Rouge/

Parish of East Baton Rouge
PO Box 1471

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821

Chief

Donald "Dewayne" White
Chief of Police

704 Mayflower St.

Baton Rouge, LA 70802

STAR

Mary Erlingson

Board President
STARLLC

233 St. Ferdinand Street
Baton Rouge, LA 70802





Each party shall immediately inform all other parties of any changes in personnel or address for
the purpose of sending required notices.

ZN\X ESS WHEREQOF, the Parties hereto have signed their names on this [
, 2012, in the presence of the undersigned competent witnesses:

day of

CITY OF BATON ROUGE/

d‘é"/ /M W PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE
k//;%/ // ﬂk 2z by \}\ M Yo N

Mdélvin "Kip" Holden, Mayor-President
/M/ZIM7 ,/m”

“Donald "Dewayne" White/”

Sexual Trauma and Response Center,

%’__/ LLC
NV

ary rhﬁgson Plesxde







COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT

This Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered on this 2nd day of December,
2011, by and between the Parties, defined exclusively as the following two entities, and referred
to individually as “Party” or collectively as “the Parties™:

Sexual Trauma and Awareness Response Center, LLC, formally chartered with
the Louisiana Secretary of State as a non-profit limited liability company
("STAR”) and represented by Ann Guedry, its board President, duly authorized
by a resolution of the STAR Board, a copy of which is attached and made a part
hereof for reference;

and

The duly elected District Attorney for the 19th Judicial District, Parish of East
Baton Rouge, Hillar C. Moore, I1I;

ALL PARTIES DECLARE AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS, the District Attorney established the Stop Rape Crisis Center in 1975 and has
continued its operations through the present day as the Rape Crisis Center using funds from his
office that today total two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) annually and employs 3 persons
including a director, a sexual assault counselor, and a volunteer/community outreach coordinator.

WHEREAS, since 1975 the District Attorney has lead efforts to ensure this nationally recognized
center provides leadership for and develops best practices for responding to the needs of victims
of sexual assault and for assisting law enforcement in the investigation and prosecution sexual
assault perpetrators.

WHEREAS, the purposes of this center include supporting victims of sexual assault through the
application of the best practices to reduce psychological and physical trauma of victims, to
support the community through prevention and education efforts, and to coordinate criminal
justice agency efforts to increase the reporting of sexual assault and improve the investigation,
prosecution and conviction of sexual assault perpetrators.

WHEREAS, this Cooperative Endeavor Agreement is for the mutual benefits, advantages, and
conveniences to the citizens of Louisiana, specifically the citizens of East Baton Rouge Parish,
by the continued operation of a Sexual Trauma and Awareness Response Center to lead efforts to
respond to victims of sexual assault and convict their perpetrators.

WHEREAS, the expected benefit of the Center to the public and to law enforcement is greater
than or commensurate with the amount of the contribution by the Parties.





NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties
hereto agree as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals.

The foregoing preliminary Recitals are incorporated herein by reference and are considered an
integral part of this Agreement.

2. Financial Support

For a period of three years commencing with execution of this document, the District Attorney
agrees to provide an annual contribution of at least $200,000, due no later than December 31st of
each calendar year preceding a calendar year of operation for STAR. Should STAR cease
operations at any time, all unexpended funds remaining from this contribution by the District
Attorney shall be returned to the District Attorney.

3. Facility Support

Under the terms of this document, the District Attorney will continue to provide cost-free
housing to STAR for a minimum of 3 professionals within the floor space allotted to the District
Attorney by the City-Parish.

4. Office Materials Support

The District Attorney shall agree to loan to STAR for the three year Term any office materials,
including but not limited to supplies, equipment, and furniture, that are currently owned by the
District Attorney and currently in used by the District Attorney's Rape Crisis Center. All
materials loaned shall be listed and attached as an addendum and made part of this agreement by
its attachment. At the termination of this agreement, all non-consumable items loaned shall be
returned to the possession of the District Attorney. Items that are not returned shall be
documented and STAR will remit to the District Attorney the reasonable cost of any non-
consumable items not returned.

5. Medical Director Support

The District Attorney will continue during the Term of this agreement to solicit the services of
voluntary medical directors and voluntary medical examiners for the purpose of conducting
forensic sexual assault exams and developing and implementing best forensic exam medical
practices.

6. Multijurisdictional Agency Support

The District Attorney will continue during the Term of this agreement to participate and solicit
the participation of other criminal justice agencies to continue the operation of a
multijurisdictional panel charged with continually examining and improving law enforcement's
response to sexual assault crimes.





7. Agreement Term

This Agreement shall be for an initial period of three years, commencing on January 1, 2012
ending on December 31, 2014 (“Term”).

The Parties agree that Year three of this Agreement will be an evaluation point for the

continuation of this Agreement. ‘
[mI]

This Agreement may be extended beyond the initial Term by mutual agreement only as

memorialized in writing by the Parties.

8. Indemnification

To the extent allowed by Louisiana law, each Party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall fully indemnify
and hold harmless the other Parties and the employees, agents, contractors, and subcontractors of
the other Parties against all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, penalties, obligations and
expenses, including, without limitation costs for counsel, when incurred, incidental to, caused by,
connected with, relating to, arising out of, or based upon, directly or indirectly, Indemnifying
Party’s use of, and/or activities on, the Property or the use of, and/or activities on, the Property of
Indemnifying Party’s employees, contractors, or subcontractors.

All the foregoing indemnification provisions shall apply to permitted uses, as well as uses that
are not permitted under this Agreement.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this Agreement, each Party
acknowledges that the Indemnifying Party’s obligation to indemnify and hold the other Parties
harmless under this Paragraph shall not extend to any loss to the extent arising out of the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of the other Parties or any of its employees, agents, contractors,
or subcontractors of the other Parties.

9. Right to Audit

Any Party to this agreement shall have the right to personally, or through the direction of others
on their behalf, audit and inspect the books, data, and records of STAR that pertain to the
monetary contribution provided under this Agreement.

10. Notice

Any and all Notice required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective
immediately upon personal delivery, subject to verification of service or acknowledgement of
receipt, or three (3) days after mailing via Certified Mail, receipt requested, to the following
addresses:





District Attorney:

Hillar C. Moore, III
District Attorney
222 Saint Louis Street, Room 550

Baton Rouge, LA 70802

STAR

Ann Guedry

Board President

STAR LLC

233 St. Ferdinand Street
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

Each party shall immediately inform all other parties of any changes in personnel or address )For
the purpose of sending required notices. ‘

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed their names on this 2nd day of |
December, 2011, in the presence of the undersigned competent witnesses:

District Attorney,
19th Judicial District,
Parish of East Baton Rouge

By:

Hillar C. Moore, III District Attorney

Sexual Trauma and Response Center,

LLC

By: »Z»—\ <\’\ v "’"Lb\a/

VAnn (iﬁry, Presicﬁnt






COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT

This Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered on the date indicated below of
by and between the Parties, defined exclusively as the following two entities, and referred to
individually as “Party” or collectively as “the Parties™:

Sexual Trauma and Awareness Response Center, LLC, formally chartered with
the Louisiana Secretary of State as a non-profit limited liability company
("STAR”) and represented by Mary Erlingson, its board President, duly
authorized by a resolution of the STAR Board, a copy of which is attached and
made a part hereof for reference;

and

The duly elected Coroner for the Parish of East Baton Rouge, William "Beau"
Clark, M.D.

ALL PARTIES DECLARE AS FOLLOWS: 1

WHEREAS, the District Attorney prior to the formation of STAR effective January 1, 2012,
established the Stop Rape Crisis Center in 1975 and continued its operations through 2011 as the
Rape Crisis Center using funds from his office that totaled two hundred thousand dollars
($200,000) annually and employed 3 persons including a director, a sexual assault counselor, and
a volunteer/community outreach coordinator.

WHEREAS, since 1975 the Coroner for the Parish of East Baton Rouge has had a statutory
responsibility for sexual assaults and has been an integral partner with the District Attorney in
efforts to ensure this nationally recognized center provided leadership for and developed best
practices to respond to the needs of victims of sexual assault and to assist law enforcement in the
investigation and prosecution sexual assault perpetrators.

WHEREAS, the purposes of this center include supporting victims of sexual assault through the
application of the best practices to reduce psychological and physical trauma of victims, to
support the community through prevention and education efforts, and to coordinate criminal
justice agency efforts to increase the reporting of sexual assault and improve the investigation,
prosecution and conviction of sexual assault perpetrators.

WHEREAS, this Cooperative Endeavor Agreement is for the mutual benefits, advantages, and
conveniences to the citizens of Louisiana, specifically the citizens of East Baton Rouge Parish,
by the continued operation of a Sexual Trauma and Awareness Response Center to lead efforts to
respond to victims of sexual assault and convict their perpetrators.

WHEREAS, the expected benefit of the Center to the public and to law enforcement is greater
than or commensurate with the amount of the contribution by the Parties.






NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties
hereto agree as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals.

The foregoing preliminary Recitals are incorporated herein by reference and are considered an
integral part of this Agreement.

2. Financial Support

For a period of one year commencing with execution of this document, the Coroner agrees tb
provide an annual contribution of at least $5,000, due no later than January 31st of each calendar
year of operation for STAR. Should STAR cease operations at any time, all unexpended funds
remaining from this contribution by the Coroner shall be returned to the Coroner. ‘

3. Multijurisdictional Agency Support

The Coroner will continue during the Term of this agreement to participate and solicit the
participation of other criminal justice agencies to continue the operation of multijurisdictional
panel charged with continually examining and improving law enforcement's response to sexual
assault crimes.

4. Agreement Term

This Agreement shall be for an initial period of one year commencing on January 1, 2013 ending
on December 31, 2013 (“Term™).

The Parties agree that year one of this Agreement will be an evaluation point for the continuation
of this Agreement.

This Agreement may be extended beyond the initial Term by mutual agreement only as
memorialized in writing by the Parties.

5. Indemnification

To the extent allowed by Louisiana law, each Party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall fully indemnify
and hold harmless the other Parties and the employees, agents, contractors, and subcontractors of

the other Parties against all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, penalties, obligations and
expenses, including, without limitation costs for counsel, when incurred, incidental to, caused by,
connected with, relating to, arising out of, or based upon, directly or indirectly, Indemnifying
Party’s use of, and/or activities on, the Property or the use of, and/or activities on, the Property of
Indemnifying Party’s employees, contractors, or subcontractors.

All the foregoing indemnification provisions shall apply to permitted uses, as well as uses that
are not permitted under this Agreement.






Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this Agreement, each Party
acknowledges that the Indemnifying Party’s obligation to indemnity and hold the other Parties
harmless under this Paragraph shall not extend to any loss to the extent arising out of the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of the other Parties or any of its employees, agents, contractors,
or subcontractors of the other Parties.

6. Right to Audit

Any Party to this agreement shall have the right to personally, or through the direction of others
on their behalf, audit and inspect the books, data, and records of STAR that pertain to the
monetary contribution provided under this Agreement.

7. Notice

Any and all Notice required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective
immediately upon personal delivery, subject to verification of service or acknowledgement of
receipt, or three (3) days after mailing via Certified Mail, receipt requested, to the following
addresses:

Coroner

William "Beau" Clark, M.D.
4030 T. B. Hearndon Avenue
Baton Rouge, LA 70807

STAR

Mary Erlingson

Board President

STAR LLC

233 St. Ferdinand Street
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

Each party shall immediately inform all other parties of any changes in personnel or address for
the purpose of sending required notices.






IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the Parties hereto have signed their names on the dates indicated
below, in the presence of the undersigned competent witnesses:

D

2 0uus
Witness

<o}

Witness

ik
0

Bhobps—

Witness

/w/it‘n?ss

Coroner,
Parish of East Baton Rouge

William "Beau" Clark, M.D.

Date: A’lﬁ\ l%

Sexual Trauma and Response CenterJ
LLC

tlingson, Pre






SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
P. LCLE Audit Requirements

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

1. Does vour organization/agency expend $500,000 or more in Federal funds (during the fiscal vear of the organization/agency from any and all sources

including the amount of this application)?

No

Please provide the following information if vour organization/agency expends $500,000 or more in Federal funds for the fiscal vear being audited:

1.1. Date of last audit

1.1.1. audit period beginning:

1.1.2. audit period ending:

1.2. Date of next andit

1.2.1. audit period beginning:

1.2.2. audit period ending:

1.3. Date next audit will be forwarded to LCLE

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 22 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
Q. LCLE Civil Rights

CIVIL RIGHTS

Congress links federal financial assistance with federal civil rights laws. Your agency must ensure protections and gnarantees of nondiscrimination. This

information is required for the agency receiving a grant from the Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement and Administration of Criminal Justice (LCLE).

You may be asked to provide copies of documentation during a site visit or desk audit.

1. CIVIL RIGHTS CONTACT PERSON - [dentify the designated individual who has lead responsibility in insuring that all applicable civil rights
requirements are met.

Racheal Hebert

1.1. Civil Rights Contact Person's Email

racheal hebert@brstar.org

1.2. Civil Rights Contact Person's Telephone Number
(225) 615-7093 ext 2

2. TRAINING - The Office for Civil Rights online training has been completed. The online training can be obtained at

www.ofp.usdoi gov/about/ocr/assistance him.

Yes

3. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN (EEOP) - Is the agency required to submit an EEQOP short form to the U.S. Department of Justice?

No

3.1. FYES, please identify the date the plan was prepared and the physical location of the plan.

3.2. If NO, vou must complete, sign, and attach the Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) Certification.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEQOP) Certification is available and is attached on previous section becanse this section did not

provide a drop box for attachments.

4. NOTICE - Describe how the agency provides notification that the agency does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, disability, and age in the delivery of services and employment practices. Check all boxes that apply. You may be asked to provide copies of

written policies or procedures.
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

4.1. Program Participants and Beneficiaries (posters, brochures, program materials, etc.)

Program Brochures
Posters

WVerbal Orientation
Website

Written Orientation / Program Mamual

4.1.1. Describe Other

N/A

4.2. Emplovees (policies, posters, recruitment materials, etc.)

Human Resource Policy

Position Announcements

Posters

4.2.1. Describe Other

N/A

5. COMPLAINTS - Describe how the agency informs program beneficiaries how to file complaints alleging discrimination. Check all boxes that apply.

Program Handbook
Written Orientation
Verbal Orientation
Policies

Website

5.1. Describer Other

N/A

6. RESOLUTION - Describe the agency's grievance procedures that incorporate due process standards for prompt and equitable resclution of complaints
alleging discrimination in employment practices and delivery of services. Check all boxes that apply.

6.1. Employment

Human Resource Policies

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 24 of 48



SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

6.1.1. Describe Other

N/A

6.1.2. Describe Procedure

STEP 1: An employee who has a complaint should submit the complaint to the Executive Director within ten (10) working days
of the event, or within a reasonable time. The Executive Director will make every attempt to resolve the grievance within ten
(10) working days thereafter. In the event the grievance is not resolved, the employee shall proceed immediately to the
procedures set forth in step two, hereafter.

STEP 2: If the employee is not satisfied with the Executive Director’s handling of the grievance, the employee may submit a
grievance to the Personnel Commitiee Chair of the Board of Directors promptly after recerving the Director’s decision. Upon
the receipt of such grievance, the Chair will call a meeting of the Personnel Committee. This committee will hear the grievance
within ten (10) working days of recetving the notice, if possible, and will promptlv render a decision and recommendation to the

employee thereafter. This decision shall be rendered in writing and shall be considered final.

STEP 3: Grievances against the Executive Director may be submitted directly to the President of the Board of Directors of the
Center. The President will call a meeting of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee will hear the grievance
promptly and, thereafter, prompily render a written decision. The decision of the Executive Committee shall be considered final.
Since all grievances and decisions are to be made in writing, it is important that the grievance contain sufficient information to

render a decision and sufficient information fo communicate a decision. The written grievance should:

A Give a clear, detailed statement of the grievance, the full name and title (if applicable) of the person(s) involved, documents in
support of the grievance (if any), and the date(s) pertinent to the grievance.

B. A clear description of the specific action desired by the emplovee(s) regarding the grievance.

C. State reasons why the specific action should be taken.

D. State in a brief summary the results of previous discussions on the issues involved (if applicable).

E. The griesvance should be signed by the employee(s).

6.2. Delivery of Services

Program Manual

Agency Policies

6.2.1. Describe Other

N/A
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

6.2.2. Describe Procedure

Per client policies given and reviewed during first date of service: STAR is intended to be a safe space for survivors of sexual
violence and their loved ones. In an instance where vou feel that vour experience with STAR has been unsatisfactory, vou are
encouraged to discuss the matter with management. Please contact Racheal Hebert, Executive Director, at (225) 615-7093 to
report any grievances or to give feedback about vour experience. You will be given a confidential and anonymous client

satisfaction survey where vou are encouraged to give an evaluation of our services upon the completion of vour counseling

sessions.

7. LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP) - Describe steps to provide meaningfil access to programs who have LEP.

Consider these factors to determine the appropriate level of reasonable steps:

a. The number or proportion of LEP persons served or encountered in the eligible service population.
b. The freguency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program.

c. The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provdied by the program.

d. The resources available to the recipient.

7.1. Does the four factors analysis warrant LEP services?

Yes

7.1.1. T YES, check all boxes that apply

Interpreter services contracted as needed.

Translation of written documents

7.1.2. Describe Other

N/A

8. RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES - Describe whether the agency conducts religious activities as part of programs or services. If so, please address the following

and attach written policies or procedures.

8.1. Do you conduct religious activities as part of the program?
No

8.1.1. fYES, please certify:

A response to this question is optional and no answers were selected.

SUBSTANTIAL FINDINGS OF DISCRIMINATION - In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State Administrative Agency (LCLE) makes a
finding of discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origina, sex, sexual orientation, disabilitv, or age against a

recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of

Justice Programs. Submit any adverse findings within the past three (3) vears of the project adward date to the Office for Civil Rights.
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

9. TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE - Would vou like technical assistance with any of these areas?

Equal Emplovment Opporiunity Plan (EEOP)
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
R. LCLE EEOP

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PROGRANM (EEOP)

Federal regulations require recipients of financial assistance from the Office of Justice Programs (OJP), its component agencies, and the Office of Commmumity
Oriented Policing Services (COPS) to prepare, maintain on file, submit to OJP for review, and implement an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) in
accordance with 28 CF R §§ 42 301- 308. The regulations exempt some recipients from all of the EEOP requirements. Other recipients, according to the
regulations, must prepare, maintain on file and implement an EEOP, but they do not need to submit the EEOP to OJP for review. Recipients that claim a
complete exemption from the EEOP requirement must complete Section A of the attached form. Recipients that claim the limited exemption from the
submission requirement must complete Section B of the attached form. A recipient should complete either Section A or Section B, not hoth. If a recipient
receives multiple OJP or COPS grants, please complete a form for each grant, ensuring that any EEOP recipient certifies as completed and on file (if applicable)
has been prepared within two vears of the latest grant. Please send the completed form(s) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S.

Department of Justice, 810 i Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531. For assistance in completing this form, please call (202) 307-0690 or TTY (202) 307-
2027.

1. SECTION A - Declaration Claiming Complete Exemption from the EEOP Requirement.

1.1. This agency claims a complete exemption from the EEOP requirement.
Yes

1.1.1. This agency (check all the boxes that apply)

Has less than 50 employees.
Is a non-profit organization

Is receiving an award less than 525 .000.

1.2. The EEOP Ceriification Form for this project has been submitted to the Offiice for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U_S. Depariment
of Justice, 810 7th Street. N.'W_, Washington, D.C_ 2053 1.

Yes

1.2.1. Date submitted

3/4/2013

1.2.2. I NO., please state when the EEOP will be submitited. LCLE must be notified when the EEQP is submitted.

2. SECTION B - Declaration Claiming Exemption from the EEOP Submission Requirement and Certifving that an EEOP is on File for Review.
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

2.1. This agency has 50 or more employees and is receiving a single award or subaward for $25.000 or more, but less than $500,000, have
formulated an EEQP in accordance with 28 C.F R 42:301, et seq., subpart E. The EEOP has been formulated and signed into effect within the
past two vears by the proper authority and that it is available for review. The EEOP is on file in the office for review by the public and employee or

for review or audit by officials of LCLE or the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Depariment of Justice, as required by

relevant laws and regulations.

A response to this question is optional and no answer was provided.

2.1.1. The EEOP is on file and can be viewed at:

LCLE-200 (08/08) Page 29 of 48




SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
S. LCLE FFATA
FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPENSATION QUESTIONNAIRE

If there are any changes to this guestionnaire, vou must notifv LCLE in writing.

1. In vour business or organization’s previous fiscal year, did yvour business or organization (including parent organization, all branches, and all affiliates
worldwide) recefve

(1) 80 percent or more vour annual gross revenues in U_S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements;
AND

(2) 525,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

No

If the answer to Question #1 is NO, STOP vou are not required to provide the data requested below.

2. If the answer to Question #1 is YES, does the public have access to information about the compensation of the senior executives in your business or
organization (including parent organization, all branches, and all affiliates worldwide) through petriodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 US.C. 78m (a). 780(d) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

A response to this question is optional and no answer was provided.

3. If the answer to Question #2 is YES, provide link to SEC: hitp://'www.sec.gov/

4. If the answer to Question #2 is NO, please provide the name and amount of the top 5 highly compensated officials of the sub-awardee organization. This will

be the same compensation information that appears in sub-awardee’s Central Contractor Registration (CCR) profile, as applicable.

EEeeTTrs Annual Income |
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13. SECTIONS:
T. LCLE Non Profit

PRIVATE NON-PROFIT AGENCY CHECKLIST

The following items must be included with submission of this application for direct funding of private non-profit agencies. This information does not have to be

submitted to LCLE for governmental applicants proposing to pass through some or all of the funds to a non-profit agency.

1. ATTACHMENT 1 - A copv of the most recent audited financial report, which must not be more than one vear old; or a letter stating that the most report is
on filed with LCLE.

Yes

2. ATTACHMENT 2 - A list of the members of the Board of Directors, stating each member's position.

Yes

3. ATTACHMENT 3 - A copv of the Louisiana Secretary of State Commerical Division stating that the organization is active and in good standing.

Yes

4. ATTACHMENT 4 - A copy of the by-laws of the organization, clearly defining the line of authority and responsibility moving between the Board and staff,

outlining the hiring practices of the organization, and demonstrating the management and controls maintained by the Board; or for continuation subgrants, a letter

from the Board Secretary certifying that the by-laws previously submitted are still in effect or copies of the latest amendments and changes.

Yes

5. ATTACHMENT 5 - Evidence that the Project Director, Financial Officer, and Board Officers and any employee that is responsible for the receipt and
expenditure of funds are included in an emplovee dishonesty insurance policy for 30% of the funds requested or 10% of the organization's budget, whichever is

greater.

Yes

6. ATTACHMENT 6 - A written statement that a checking account for subgrant funds will be arranged so that at least two (2) signatures are required for

issuance of checks, and a list of those individuals who have such authority.

Yes

LCLE NON PROFIT related attachments:

File Name: File Description:
mancial Report 6.30.12-1.pdf Financial Report 6.30.12
oard of Directors.pdf Board of Directors List
TAR State of Louisiana Incorporation.pdf Secretary of State Certificate
TAR By-Laws.pdf STAR By-Laws
ﬁ)ishonesty Bond.pdf Dishonesty Bond
ﬁ\{emo + Governance Policies Review 2013 .pdf Governance Policy RE: Check Signing
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THOMAS W. KLEINPETER, JR.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
610 Napoteon St.
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70802

TELEPHONE MEMBER
%23)52 344-0011 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
gZS) 344-0012 SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA
-MAIL CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

twk@twkleinpetercpa.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT

The Board of Directors
Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

I have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of Sexual Trauma Awareness and
Response Center (a nonprofit corporation) as of June 30, 2012, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses and cash flows for the six months then ended. A review includes primarily
applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of the
STAR’s management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of
which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly,
I do not express such an opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements.

My responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require me to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance that there are no material modifications that
should be made to the financial statements. I believe that the results of my procedures provide a
reasonable basis for my report.

Based on my review, I am not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Baton Rouge, Louisiana
December 12, 2012





SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE CENTER
BATON ROUGE, LOUISTIANA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 137,951
Grants receivable 24,555
Total current assets 162,506
FIXED ASSETS
Office equipment 7,162
Less: accumulated depreciation (750)
6,412
Total Assets $ 168,918
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 117
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes 9,471
Total current liabilities 9,588
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 159,330
Temporarily restricted -
Total net assets 159,330
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 168,918

See accompanying notes and independent accountant's review report.
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SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE CENTER

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Temporarily
SUPPORT Unrestricted Restricted Total

Contributions and fundraising $ 18,788 $ - 18,788
Local government grants and support 237,944 - 237,944
Federal financial assistance - 29,817 29,817
Non-government grants and support 1,000 1,250 2,250
In-kind contributions 94,516 - 94,516
352,248 31,067 383,315

Other Support
Program service revenue 599 - 599
Assets released from restrictions 31,067 (31,067) -
31,666 (31,067) 599
Total Support 383,914 - 383,914

EXPENSES

Program 163,111 - 163,111
Administrative 45,573 - 45,573
Fundraising 15,900 - 15,900
Total Expenses 224,584 - 224,584
Change in Net Assets 159,330 - 159,330
Net assets, at beginning of year - - -
Net assets, at end of year $ 159,330 - 159,330

See accompanying notes and independent accountant's review report.
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SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE CENTER

Staff salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Occupancy and utilities
Insurance

Equipment

Supplies and materials
Printing and copying
Telecommunications
Conferences & travel
Marketing and advertising
Membership/Affiliations
Training

Contract services
Fundraising expenses
In-kind

Miscellaneous
Depreciation

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Program Administration Fundraising Total
60,241 12,338 72,579
11,457 2,347 13,804

150 50 200
8,068 2,689 10,757
427 143 570
1,744 194 1,938

- 88 885

300 100 400
3,570 1,190 4,760
- - 10,240

- 363 363

1,540 - 1,540
3,441 469 3,910
- - 4,863
72,173 18,043 90,216
- 6,809 6,809

- 750 750
163,111 45,573 224,584

See accompanying notes and independent accountant's review report.





SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE CENTER
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Non-cash donations

Decrease (increase) in assets
Grants receivable

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accrued payables

159,330

750

(4,300)

(24,555)

9,588

Net cash used in operating activities

140,813

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment

(2,862)

Net cash used in investing activities

(2,862)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

137,951

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $

137,951

SUPPLEMENTAL CASHFLOW INFORMATION
Office equipment valued at $4,300 was contributed by a donor.
No taxes or interest were paid during the year.

See accompanying notes and independent accountant's review report.
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SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE CENTER
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies and Presentations

Organization and Purpose

The Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center (STAR) is a community wide, non-profit agency
exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c¢) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. STAR was
incorporated on October 18, 2011. It’s purposes was to continue the efforts its predecessor, the Rape
Crisis Center, which was a division of the District Attorney of the 19" Judicial District, and also to
expand its reach to different demographic groups and increase education in the community. More
specifically, STAR’s purpose is to promote and address the needs of victims of sexual assault. STAR is
organized to educate the public and governmental agencies as to the needs of victims of sexual assault,
including performing and implementing research, studies, projects and programs to assist and improve
the Greater Baton Rouge area law enforcement agencies assistance to victims of sexual trauma; to
undertake programs, education and activities designed to strengthen the services provided within the
Greater Baton Rouge area to victims of sexual assault; and any other lawful purpose of a 501(c)3
organization.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statement presentation follows the standards of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board. Under these standards, STAR is required to report information regarding its financial position
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. STAR does not have any permanently restricted net
assets. STAR began operations on January 1, 2012, and as such these financial statements reflect the
activity of six months ending June 30, 2012.

Contributions

STAR accounts for contributions in accordance with the standards of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board. In accordance with these standards, contributions received are recorded as increases
in unrestricted, temporarily, or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the existence or nature
of any donor restrictions.

All donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net
assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released
from restrictions.

Equipment

Equipment, when purchased, is stated at cost. Donated equipment is valued at its’ estimated
replacement value at the time of donation. All equipment is depreciated over estimated service lives
(3-7 years) computed using the straight-line method.
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SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE CENTER
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies and Presentations (continued)

Compensated Absences

STAR has a provision that allows unused employee annual leave to accrue up to a limited number of
hours. Annual leave is considered earned income, and employees leaving STAR employment will be
paid for the remaining balance of unused annual leave, whether the departure is voluntary or
involuntary. An accrual of annual leave has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements
for the unused amount at June 30, 2012.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents (as shown in the statement of cash flows) are all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity with three months or less.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the
reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

STAR has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service as a not-for-profit organization as
described in Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is exempt from federal income taxes.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes on related income has been included in the financial
statements.

In Management’s judgment, STAR does not have any tax positions that would result in a loss
contingency considering the facts, circumstances, and information available at the reporting date.

With few exceptions, the statute of limitations for the examination of STAR’s income tax returns is
generally three years from the due date of the tax returns including extensions. The tax form 990 is

prepared on fiscal year basis. This tax year, which is the year of inception, is open for assessment.

Donated Materials, Assets, and Facilities and Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance
nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills,
and would otherwise be purchased by STAR. Volunteers provide services throughout the year
that are not recognized as contributions in the financial statements since the recognition
criteria were not met.





SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE CENTER
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies and Presentations (continued)

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at fair value at the date of
donation. Such donations are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless the donor
has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions
regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and
equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how
long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the
donor. The Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets
at that time.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and administrative activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs
have been allocated between program, administrative, and fund raising expense based on
management’s estimate.

Description of Program and Supporting Services

Advocacy

Advocacy services include medical and criminal justice advocacy. Medical advocates available 24/7 to
assist survivors and their loved ones immediately after an assault occurs, or when referrals or
information is needed. STAR also provides advocates to accompany survivors through the areas of the
criminal justice system.

Support

Support services include short-term individual counseling, therapy groups, and support groups offered
to survivors and their loved ones. STAR also provides a 24-hour support and resource hotline.

Education

Education includes training and violence prevention programs for schools and organizations free of
charge. STAR’s trained prevention educators assist in making businesses and agencies violence-free.

Counseling

STAR provides support sessions that are available to individuals, couples, and families and are based
on current evidenced based treatment appropriate for sexual assault. All sessions are designed to
identify, understand and ameliorate the effects of sexual assault, promote healing, and initiate the
integration of the sexual assault experience. All services of STAR are free and confidential.

-8-





SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE CENTER
BATON ROUGE, LOUISTIANA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

This reporting period is the year of inception and as such there were no restricted net assets as of the
beginning of the year. Restricted grants and donations including federal financial assistance totaled
$31,067 during the six months ended June 30, 2012.

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Net assets were released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by
occurrences of other events specified by the donors for the following programs.

Rape prevention education $ 20411
Crisis intervention, counseling and advocacy 9,406
Survivor retreat 1,250

$_31,067
Federal Grants

Grant revenues received from the U.S. Department of Justice and the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services totaled $9,406 and $20,411, respectively for the six months ended June 30, 2012.
This total is made up of the following grants:

Rape Prevention Education Program
Passed Through the Louisiana Foundation Against Sexual Assault (LaFASA)

Grant Period 07/01/2011 — 06/30/2012 $ 20411
STOP (Services, Training, Officers, Prosecutors) Violence Against Women Formula Grant

Program
Passed Through Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement and Administration of

Criminal Justice
Grant Period 03/01/2012 — 02/28/2013 5,656
Sexual Assault Services Program

Passed Through the Louisiana Foundation Against Sexual Assault (LaFASA)

Grant Period 04/01/2012 — 03/31/2013 3.750

$ 29817
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SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE CENTER
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Donated Materials, Assets, Facilities and Services

During the six months ended June 30, 2012, STAR received donated materials, assets, facilities and
services as follows:

Executive Director salary $ 75,000
Facilities 15,000
Donated office equipment 4,300
Printing services 516
Total $ 94516

During the six months ending June 30, 2012, $94,516 was recognized as support in the Statement of
Activities. Of that amount, $90,216 was recognized as an expense and $4,300 was capitalized and
included in the statement of financial position as office equipment. Of the total amount donated,
$94,300 was provided by one granting agency.

Concentration of Credit Risk

STAR’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash. STAR
had cash balances on deposit with one bank at June 30, 2012. The balance at June 30, 2012 did not
exceed the FDIC insured limit.

Major Grantor Agencies

STAR received grant revenues from one granting agency representing approximately 62% of total
support during the six months ended June 30, 2012. All of the grants receivable were due from other
various granting agencies.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were
available to be issued December 12, 2012, and determined that no other events would require
disclosure.
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THOMAS W. KLEINPETER, JR.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
610 Napoleon St.
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70802

TELEPHONE MEMBER
%225 344-0011 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

%225) 344-0012 SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA
-MAIL CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

twk@twkleinpetercpa.com

Independent Accountant's Report
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

The Board of Directors
Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

I have performed the procedures included in the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide and
enumerated below, which were agreed to by the management of Sexual Trauma Awareness and
Response Center, the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, and applicable state grantor
agency/agencies solely to assist the users in evaluating management's assertions about Sexual
Trauma Awareness and Response Center's compliance with certain laws and regulations during
the six month period ended June 30, 2012 included in the accompanying Louisiana Attestation
Questionnaire. Management of Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center is responsible
for its financial records and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. This agreed-upon
procedures engagement was performed in accordance with attestation standards established by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government
Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the
specified users of this report. Consequently, I make no representation regarding the sufficiency
of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested
or for any other purpose.

Federal, State, and Local Awards

1. Determine the amount of federal, state and local award expenditures for the fiscal year,
by grant and grant year.

Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center’s federal, state and local award expenditures
for all programs for the fiscal year are as follows:

STOP (Services, Training, Officers, 03/01/2012 - 16.588

Prosecutors) Violence Against Women 02/28/2013

Formula Grant Program $ 5,656
Rape Prevention Education Program 07/01/2011 —1 93136 20,411
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06/30/2012
Sexual Assault Services Program 04/01/2012 116017
03/31/2013 3,750
Unrestricted operating grant from the District
. I 01/01/2012 — | NA
Attorney of the Nineteenth Judicial District 06/30/2012 237.944
$ 267,761

2. For each federal, state and local award:

I randomly selected 6 disbursements from each award administered during the period
under examination.

I selected six disbursements from the Rape Prevention Education Program grant. I
selected all six of the disbursements charged to the Sexual Assault Service Providers
Grant Program. All of these were salary allocations that were also partially allocated
to the STOP Violence Against Women Formula Grant Program. Since there was only
one additional disbursement from the STOP Violence Against Women Formula
Grant Program, I selected this also.

The grant from the District Attorney of the Ninetieth Judicial District is an
unrestricted operating grant, so I did not make any selections from those unrestricted

funds.

Therefore, a total of thirteen disbursements were selected for testing.

I traced the thirteen disbursements to supporting documentation as to proper amount
and payee.

No exceptions

I determined if the thirteen disbursements were properly coded to the correct fund
and general ledger account.

No exceptions

I determined whether the thirteen disbursements received approval from proper
authorities.

No exceptions.

For federal awards, | determined whether the disbursements complied with the
applicable specific program compliance requirements summarized in the Compliance
Supplement (or contained in the grant agreement, if the program is not included in the
Compliance Supplement) and for state and local awards, I determined whether the
disbursements complied with the grant agreement, relating to:
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Activities allowed or unallowed- No exceptions
Eligibility- No exceptions.
Reporting- No exceptions.

3. For the programs selected for testing in item (2) that had been closed out during the
period under review, I compared the close-out report, when required, with the agency’s
financial records to determine whether the amounts agree.

The Rape Prevention and Education Program grant was closed out during the period
under review. A close-out report was not required.

Open Meetings

4. Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center is not required to comply with R.S. 42:1
through 42:13 (the open meetings law) because it is not a “public body.”

Budget

5. For all grants exceeding five thousand dollars, I determined that each applicable federal,
state, or local grantor agency/agency was provided with a comprehensive budget of those
grants that included the purpose and duration, and for state grants included specific goals
and objectives and measures of performance.

No exceptions.
Prior Comments and Recommendations

6. This is not applicable because this is the Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response
Center’s first year of operations.

I was not engaged to perform, and did not perform, an audit, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on management's assertions. Accordingly, I do not express such an
opinion. Had I performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention
that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the use of management of Sexual Trauma Awareness and
Response Center, the Legislative Auditor (State of Louisiana), and the applicable state grantor
agency/agencies and should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and
taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes. Under Louisiana
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

o 1. Yl 2/

December 12, 2012
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LOUISIANA ATTESTATION QUESTIONNAIRE
(For Attestation Engagements of Quasi-public Agencies)

August 10, 2012

Thomas W. Kleinpeter, CPA
610 Napoleon Street
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

In connection with your review of our financial statements as of June 30, 2012 and for the period
then ended, and as required by Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513 and the Louisiana
Governmental Audit Guide, we make the following representations to you. We accept full
responsibility for our compliance with the following laws and regulation and the internal controls
over compliance with such laws and regulations. We have evaluated our compliance with the
following laws and regulations prior to making these representations.

These representations are based on the information available to us as of August 10, 2012.

Federal, State, and Local Awards

We have detailed for you the amount of federal, state and local award expenditures for the fiscal
year, by grant and grant year.

Yes({X] No[]

All transactions relating to federal, state, and local grants have been properly recorded within our
accounting records and reported to the appropriate state, federal, and grantor officials.

Yes[X] No[ ]

The reports filed with federal, state, and local agencies are properly supported by books of
original entry and supporting documentation.

Yes[X] No[ ]
We have complied with all applicable specific requirements of all federal, state, and local
programs we administer, to include matters contained in the OMB Compliance Supplement,

matters contained in the grant awards, eligibility requirements, activities allowed and unallowed,
and reporting and budget requirements.

Yes[X] No[ ]





Open Meetings

Our meetings, as they relate to public funds, have been posted as an open meeting as required
by R.S. 42:1 through 42:13 (the open meetings law). Not Applicable.

Yes[] No[]
Budget

For each federal, state, and local grant we have filed with the appropriate grantor agency a
comprehensive budget for those grants that included the purpose and duration, and for state
grants included specific goals and objectives and measures of performance

Yes[X] Nol[ ]
Prior Year Comments
We have resolved all prior-year recommendations and/or comments. Not Applicable.
Yes[] Nof ]
We have disclosed to you all known noncompliance of the foregoing laws and regulations, as well
as any contradictions to the foregoing representations. We have made available to you

documentation relating to the federal, state, and local grants, to include the applicable laws and
regulations.

We have provided you with any communications from regulatory agencies or other sources
concerning any possible noncompliance with the foregoing laws and regulations, including any
communications received between the end of the period under examination and the issuance of
this report. We will also disclose to you, the Legislative Auditor, and the applicable state grantor
agency/agencies any known noncompliance that may occur up to the date of your repo
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| BY-LAWS OF
SEXUAL TRAUMA AWARENESS AND RESPONSE (STAR) CENTER

ARTICLEIT -
NAME AND OFFICE

Section1:  Name. The name of the corporation is Sexual Trauma Awareness and
Response (STAR) Center (referred to interchangeably herein as “STAR” or the “Corporation”).

Section 2:  Principal Office. The principal office of STAR, a nonprofit corporation
incorporated under the laws of the State of Louisiana, shall be located at 233 St. Ferdinand Street,
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802 which shall also be STAR’s registered office in the State of
Louisiana. The Board of Directors or Executive Committee of STAR may change the address for
the principal office or the registered office from time to time. -

ARTICLE Il
PURPOSE

STAR is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes including for such
purposes the making of distributions to corporations that qualify as exempt corporations under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 19886, as amended, or any corresponding section
of any future federal income tax code (the “Code”). More specifically, STAR’s purpose is to promote
and address the needs of victims of sexual assault. STAR is organized to educate the public and
governmental agencies as to the needs of victims of sexual assault, including performing and
implementing research, studies, projects and programs to assist and improve the Greater Baton
Rouge area law enforcement agencies’ assistance to victims of sexual trauma; to undertake
programs, education and activities designed to strengthen the services provided within the Greater
Baton Rouge area to victims of sexual assault; and any other lawful purpose of a 501(c)3
organization. All terms and provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, and all authority

- and operations of STAR, shall be construed, applied and carried out in accordance with such intent.

ARTICLE I
MEMBERSHIP

Section 1: Members. Membership in STAR is open to all individuals who support the
mission of STAR, including law enforcement, the medical community, parents, family members and
friends of victims of sexual assault. Members shall also include community businesses, charitable

' organizations or individuals that assist victims of sexual trauma. Members shall have the right to
* attend all meetings of STAR, elect STAR’s Board of Directors, to identify needs of victims and serve

on any commlttee(s) establlshed under these Bylaws, or subsequently identified by the Board of
Directors of STAR.

Section 2:  Dues. The annual dues for members of STAR shall be set as follows: $10.00

student or survivor membership; $25.00 individual membership; $300.00 corporate membership.

Membership may be based on the members’ ability to pay. The amount of the annual dues can be
amended from time to time by the Executive Committee of STAR. Collection of dues will be
conducted during the first month of STAR's fiscal year.

Section 3: Voting Rights. Each member shall be entitled fo one vote on each matter
submitted to a vote of the members





ARTICLE IV
MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1: Location of Meeting. All meetings of the members shall be held at the
- principal office of the Corporation or at such other place, within the State of Louisiana, as may be
designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 2: Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the members shall be held in the
month of August of each calendar year for the purpose of electing the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) and for the transaction of such other business as may properly be brought before the
meeting. If the election of directors or executives is not held in the time designated for the annual
meeting, or at any adjournment of the annual meeting, the Board shall cause the election to be held
at a special meeting of the members as soon after as is convenient.

Section 3:  Special Meeting. Special meetings of the members, for any purpose or
purposes, may be called by the President or by the Board. At any time, upon the written request of
atleast one-third of the directors, the Secretary shall call a special meeting of members to be held at
the registered office or principal place of business of STAR at such time as the Secretary may fix,
but not less than ten, nor more than sixty days after receipt of said request.

Section4:  Notice. Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of any
meeting of members shall be delivered, either personally or by mail, fax, electronic mail or other
electronic means, to each member entitied to vote at such méeting, not less than ten, nor more than
sixty days before the date of such meeting, by or at the direction of the President or the Secretary of
STAR. In case of a special meeting, or when required by statute, or by the Bylaws, the purposes for
-which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice. If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be
deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his
address as it appears on the records of STAR, with postage thereon prepaid. If sent by fax,
electronic mail or other electronic means addressed to a fax or electronic address provided by a
member, notice of a meeting shall be deemed to.be delavered on the date the communication is

sent.

. Section 5:  Voting by Proxv At any meeting of the members, members shall not be
entitled to vote by proxy.

Section 6:  Quorum. All members of the corporation attending a meeting shall be
considered a quorum. -

ARTICLE V
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE -

Section 1: General Powers.

A.  The Executive Committee shall be the governing body of STAR. Subject to the
provisions of the Articles of Incorporation of STAR and these Bylaws, the business and affairs of
STAR shall be managed by the Executive Committee and the Board. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Board shall not have the power or authontyto take any achon which would jeopardize

the tax-exempt status of STAR.






B. The Board shall be composed of no less than five (5), or more than fifteen (15)
directors. Except as detailed below, all Directors shall be members of STAR. Board members shail
serve as the Chair of any Commlttees established herein, or established by the Board

C. The Board shall be divided into three classes as Class 1, Class 2 and Class 3.
Each class-shall consist, as nearly as possible, of one-third of the total number of directors
constituting the entire Board of Directors. Class 1 directors for a two-year term, Class 2 directors
for athree-year term and Class 3 directors for a four-year term. - Any increase or decrease in the
number of directors on the Board of Directors by the members shall be apportioned among the
classes'so as to maintain the number of directors in each class as nearly equal as possible. -

Section 2: ~ Election of Executive Committee. The members of the Board of Directors
of STAR shall elect a President, Vice-President, Treasurer and Secretary. Those officers shall

serve as the Executive Committee.

~ Section 3:  Executive Committee. The Board’s Executive Committee shall be
composed of the President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. Members of the Executive
Committee will be elected by the Board of Directors of STAR at the Annual Meeting.

Nominations may be made from the floor provided the consent of the nominee has been obtained.
Election shall be by voice unless there are multiple nominations for an office. A majority vote shall
- constitute an election. Each Board of Director shall be entitled to one vote per office.

(i) President. The F-’reslident shall preside at all meetings of STAR, the
Executive Committee, the Board, and may be an Ex-Officio member of all committees '
except the Nominating Committee.

(ii) - The Vice-President. The Vice Presm!ent shall assist the President in the
general work of STAR and, in the absence of the President, serve in his/her stead, and
-shall perform such duties as shall be assigned by the President.

. (iii) The Secretary. The Secretary shall keep in permanent form the minutes of
all meetings of STAR, recording all motions and votes, and will furnish copies of said
minutes to all members of the Board. The Secretary shall keep a list of current Officers
and conduct the correspondence of STAR when necessary, including sending meeting
notifications to members of the Board and the membership of STAR.

(iv) ‘The Treasurer: The Treasurer shall be the custodian of the funds of STAR,
providing a detailed financial report at each Board meeting and at the Annual Meeting.
The Treasurer-shall be responsible for the collection of and maintenance of a record of
all members who have paid dues or made donations to STAR.

Section 4: Committées. The Board is authorized to establish committees to aid their
~ efforts to fulfill the Mission of STAR.






. "~ ARTICLE VI )
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRCTORS

Section 1:  Regular Meetings. The Board shall establish a regﬁ!ar time, date and
location for the meetings. Such meetings will normally be held at least twice each year, but the
Board may conduct such speciai meetmgs as they deem necessary, for the conduct of business.

Section 2:  Annual Meeting. An Annual Meetmg will be conducted at a date, tlme and
location to be announced by the Board, with notice given at least three (3) weeks in advance of the
event to all members of STAR. The purpose of this meeting will be fo provide a review of all
activities of STAR, hold elections, and conduct other busmess as deemed necessary.

Section 3:  Special M Meetmas Special meetlngs of the Board may be called by the
request of three or more members of the Board or the President or the Executive Director of STAR.
Notice of any special meeting shall'be delivered at least forty-eight (48) hours before the special
meeting. For purposes of this Section, facsimile or electronic mail shall quallfy‘ as a medium for

official notification.

Section 4:  Quorum. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of
the Board and STAR. ;

; Section 5:  Action by Written Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken at

such a meeting may be taken without a meeting and without a vote if a consent or consents in
writing, setting forth the action so taken, is signed by the Directors, members of a committee of the
Board or the Members, as applicable, having no fewer than the minimum number of votes that
would be necessary to take the action at a meeting .at which all Directors; all members of the
. committee or all of the Members, as applicable, entitled to vote on the action were present and
‘voted. Notice of actions taken by written consent shall be delivered to the other Directors,
committee members or other Members, as applicable, no later than the second Business Day
following the date the requisite consent is obtained.

Section 6:  Meetings by Telephone. Directors, members of any committee of the Board,
or the Members, as applicable, may participate in and hold any meeting by means of conference
telephone, video conference or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons
participating in the meeting can hear each other, and the votes of any Directors, members of any

. committee of the Board, or the Members, as applicable, participating by conference telephone, video
conference or similar communications equipment shall be given full effect.

' ARTICLE Vil
DONATIONS AND DISBURSEMENTS

Section 1:  Acceptance of Gifts. All donations, bequests or giﬂs shall be made payable
to STAR and shall be accepted and acknowledged by the Treasurer or other designated member of

the Board.

Section 2: Disbursements.

_ A. The Board, not less frequently than annually, shall make distributions from the net
income and principal of the Corporation pursuant to the provisions of the Bylaws and-Articles,
provided the Board has determined that the requests for distribution are in compliance with the
Mission of STAR. The Board may gather and analyze data, or conduct such other investigations





‘and research as necessary, to determine the means for carrying out the educational and charitable
purposes and functions of STAR.

B. All such determinations of distributions to be made shall be by an affirmative vote of a
majority of Directors present at a meeting duly called at which a quorum is present, unless otherwise
expressly provided in the Bylaws or by direction of the donor as a condition of the gift. Unless
requested otherwise by the Board, any unused or undistributed funds shall be reinvested as

principal.

C. Disbursements for other proper administrative expenses incurred by the Board,
including salaries for such professional and other assistance as it from time to time deems
necessary or desirable to accomplish the Mission, shall be directed to be paid so far as possible,
first from any funds designated for such purposes, and the balance out of income of the funds of

STAR not specifically restricted against such use.

ARTICLE Vil
AMENDMENTS

Amendments to these By-Laws may be-made upon reoommendaﬁon and approval of a
majorlty of the members attending the Annual Meetlng

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

STAR shall indemnify the members of the Executive Committee and Board for the defense
of civil or criminal actions or proceedings as hereinafter provided in a manner and fo the extent

permitted by applicable law. *

STAR shall indemnify the members of the Executive Committee and the Board from and
against any and all judgments, fines, amounts paid in settlement, and reasonable expenses,
including attomey’s fees, actually and necessarily incurred or imposed as a result of such action or
proceeding or any appeal therein, imposed upon or asserted against him or her by reason of being
or having been such a member or a director or officer acting within the scope of his or her official
duties so long as he conducted himself in good faith or in good faith believed his/her conduct in
his/her official capacity was in the best interest of STAR or in all other cases his/her conduct was at
‘least not opposed to its best interest. In the case of a criminal action or proceeding, this indemnity
shall apply where the aforesaid had no reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was

unlawful.

This indemnification shall be made in accordance with §12:227 of the Louisiana Nonprofit
Corporation Law, as amended, only if STAR shall be advised by its Board of Directors acting (1) by
a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who are not parties to such action or proceeding
and who find that, or (2) if a quorum under (1) is not obtainable with due diligence, upon the opinion
in writing of legal counsel that, the directors or office has met the foregoing applicable standard of -
conduct. If the foregoing determination is to be made by the Board, it may rely as to all equations .of

law on the advice of independent legal counsel.






ARTICLE X
FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of STAR shall begin on July 1 and end on June 30 of each year, with the
first fiscal year commencing with the formation of the company, and ending on June 30, 2012,

ARTICLE X|
GOVERNING LAW

STARIs a Corporation established under the laws of the State of Louisiana. These By]aws
are adopted pursuant to the Louisiana Nonprofit Corporation Law and shall be construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana. '

ARTICLE X!
TAX-EXEMPT NON-PROFIT CORPORATION

A. STAR shall not be operated for pecunlary gain or profit.

, B. No part of the net earnings of STAR shall inure the benefit of, or be drstrrbutable to,
any director, officer or employee of STAR, or any other private person; but STAR shall be authorized

and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for service rendered and to make payments and

distributions in furtherance of the purposes as set forth in Article Two of the Articles of Incorporation.

C. No substantial part of the activities of STAR shall be the carrying on of propaganda,
or otherwise attempting to influence legislation; and STAR shall not participate in, or intervene in
(including the publication or distribution of statements) any political campalgn on behalf of any
candidate for public office.

D.  As deemed set forth in the Articles of Incorporation, to STAR shall;

() . Notengage in any act of self-dealing, as defined in Section 4941(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, which would give rise to any liability for tax |mposed
by Section 4941 of the Internal Revenue Code;

(i) Not retain any excess business holdings, as defined in Section 4043(c) of the
Internal Revenue Code, which would give rise to any liability for tax imposed
by Section 4943 of the Intemal Revenue Code. '

(iii) Not make any investments, whlch would jeopardize carrying out any of the
exempt purposes of the Corporation, within the meaning of Section 4944 of
the Intemal Revenue Code, so as to give rise to any Ilabrllty for tax 1mposed
by Section 4944 of the Internal Revenue Code;

(iv)  Not make any taxable eXperiditures, as defined in Section 4045(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, which would give rise to any liability for tax imposed
by Section 4945 of the Internal Revenue Code;

) Distribute for the purpose specified in the Articles of Incorporation for each

taxable year amounts at least sufficient to avoid any liability for the tax
imposed by Section 4942 of the Internal Revenue Code.






E. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws,

‘STAR shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on:

0] .By a corporation exempt from federal income -taxation under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended; or

(i) By a corporation, contributions to which are deductible for federal income tax
purposes under- Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, as
amended. '

It is intended that STAR shall have, and continue fo have, the status of an organization which is
exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) and 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code, as amended. All terms and provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, and

- all authority and operations of STAR, shall be construed, applied and carried outin accordance with

such intent.

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)






THUS DONE AND PASSED before me, in the Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of
Louisiana on the day, month and year first above written, in the presence of the undersigned
competent witnesses, residing in the Parish of East Baton Rouge, after due reading of the whole.

-WITNESSES:I - _ SECRETARY: -
L R ——
'_g:_","‘e;pl'\g A & é—,\chggla Q ' Racheal Hebert”
(Print Name) . 51 ' . '
/’?/\A)J G{JQ{L&M
" Print Name J
(— 'y 2

/ /N@'TARYPUBLICU
/M}H:V s éf/’Hﬂw

(Print Name)
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LIMIT OF LIABILITY UNDER THIS BOND AND PRIOR INSURANCE:

SECTION 8. With respect to loss or losses caused by an Employee or which are chargeable to such Employee as
provided in Section 5 and which occur partly under this bond and partly under other bonds or policies issued by
the Surety to the Insured or to any predecessor in interest of the Insured and terminated or cancelled or allowed
to expire and in which the period for discovery has not expired at the time any such loss or losses thereunder are
discovered, the total liability of the Surety under this bond and under such other bonds or policies shall not
exceed, in the aggregate, the amount carried under this bond on such loss or losses or the amount available to
the Insured under such other bonds or policies, as limited by the terms and conditions thereof, for any such loss
or losses, if the latter amount be the larger.

SALVAGE:

SECTION 9. If the Insured shall sustain any loss or losses covered by this bond which exceed the amount of
coverage provided by this bond, the Insured shall be entitled to all recoveries, except from suretyship, insurance,
reinsurance, security or indemnity taken by or for the benefit of the Surety, by whomsoever made, on account of
such loss or losses under this bond until fully reimbursed, less the actual cost of effecting the same; and less the
amount of the deductible carried on the Employee causing such loss or losses; and any remainder shall be
applied to the reimbursement of the Surety.

CANCELLATION AS TO ANY EMPLOYEE:

SECTION 10. This bond shall be deemed cancelled as to any Employee: (a) immediately upon discovery by the
Insured, or by any partner or officer thereof not in collusion with such Employee, of any fraudulent or dishonest
act on the part of such Employee; or (b) at 12:00 o’clock night, standard time, upon the effective date specified in
a written notice served upon the Insured or sent by mail. Such date, if the notice be served, shall be not less
than ten days after such service, or, if sent by mail, not less than fifteen days after the date of mailing. The
mailing by Surety of notice, as aforesaid, to the Insured at its principal office shall be sufficient proof of notice.

CANCELLATION AS TO BOND IN ITS ENTIRETY:

SECTION 11. This bond shall be deemed cancelled in its entirety at 12:00 o’clock night, standard time, upon
the effective date specified in a written notice served by the Insured upon the Surety or by the Surety upon the
Insured, or sent by mail. Such date, if served by the Surety, shall be not less than ten days after such service,
or if sent by the Surety by mail, not less than fifteen days after the date of mailing. The mailing by the Surety
of notice, as aforesaid, to the Insured at its principal office shall be sufficient proof of notice. The Surety shall
refund to the Insured the unearned premium computed pro rata if this bond be cancelled at the instance of the
Surety, or at short rates if cancelled or reduced at the instance of the Insured.

PRIOR FRAUD, DISHONESTY OR CANCELLATION:

SECTION 12. No Employee, to the best of the knowledge of the Insured, or of any partner or officer thereof not
in collusion with such Employee, has committed any fraudulent or dishonest act in the service of the Insured or
otherwise. If prior to the issuance of this bond, any fidelity insurance in favor of the Insured or any predecessor
in interest of the Insured and covering one or more of the Insured’s Employees shall have been cancelled as to
any of such Employees by reason of (a) the discovery of any fraudulent or dishonest act on the part of such
Employees, or (b) the giving of written notice of cancellation by the insurer issuing said fidelity insurance,
whether the Surety or not, and if such Employees shall not have been reinstated under the coverage of said
fidelity insurance or superseding fidelity insurance, the Surety shall not be liable under this bond on account of
such Employees unless the Surety shall agree in writing to include such Employees within the coverage of this
bond.

LOSS-NOTICE-PROOF-LEGAL PROCEEDINGS:

SECTION 13. At the earliest practical moment, and at all events not later than fifteen days after discovery of
any fraudulent or dishonest act on the part of any Employee by the Insured, or by any partner or officer thereof
not in collusion with such Employee, the Insured shall give the Surety written notice thereof and within four
months after such discovery shall file with the Surety affirmative proof of loss, itemized and duly sworn to, and
shall upon request of the Surety render every assistance, not pecuniary, to facilitate the investigation and
adjustment of any loss. No suit to recover on account of loss under this bond shall be brought before the
expiration of two months from the filing of proof as aforesaid on account of such loss, nor after the expiration of
fifteen months from the discovery as aforesaid of the fraudulent or dishonest act causing such loss. If any
limitation in this bond for giving notice, filing claim or bringing suit is prohibited or made void by any law
controlling the construction of this bond, such limitation shall be deemed to be amended so as to be equal to the
minimum period of limitation permitted by such law.

PART-TIME OR TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES:

SECTION 14. The named Insured shall not at any time while this bond is in force direct any temporary or
part-time Employee(s) to any subscriber’s premises unless such Employee(s) is accompanied by a foreman who
is in the regular employ of the Insured.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DATED February 09 , 2012

WESTE@WCOMPANY
By / ,~;?;§Z§¢:_

PAUL T. BRUFLAT, SENIORICE PRESIDENT

SHTXHS
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COPY
Western Surety Company

DISHONESTY BOND
(FOR ANY TYPE OF BUSINESS)

Bond No._71229971

In consideration of the agreed premium, Western Surety Company, a South Dakota corporation (the "Surety"),
hereby agrees to indemnify _Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center
233 SAINT FERDINAND ST., BATON ROUGE, T.A 70802

(the "Insured"), against any loss of money or other property which the Insured shall sustain or for
which the Insured shall incur liability to any Customer or Subscriber of the Insured through any
fraudulent or dishonest act or acts committed by any Employee or Employees of the Insured
acting alone or in Collusion with others, the amount of indemnity on each of such Employees being

TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($__$25,000.00 ).
THE FOREGOING AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS:
TERM OF BOND:

SECTION 1. The term of this bond begins withthe ____ 08 dayof_February = 2012 |
standard time at the address of the Insured above given, and ends at 12:00 o’clock night, standard time, on the
effective date of the cancellation of this bond in its entirety.

EXCLUSION:

SECTION 2. This bond does not apply to loss, or to that part of any loss, as the case may be, the proof of
which, either as to its factual existence or as to its amount, is dependent upon an inventory computation or a
profit and loss computation. In addition, the policy does not apply to the defense of any legal proceedings
brought against the Insured, or to fees, costs or expenses incurred or paid by the Insured in prosecuting or
defending any legal proceedings whether or not such proceedings results or would result in a loss to the Insured
covered by this policy. In addition, the Company shall not be liable for any costs, fees and other expenses
incurred by the Insured in establishing the existence or the amount of loss covered under this policy.
DISCOVERY PERIOD:

SECTION 3. Loss is covered under this bond only (a) if sustained through any act or acts committed by any
Employee of Insured while this bond is in force as to such Employee, and (b) if discovered prior to the expiration
or sooner cancellation of this bond in its entirety as provided in Section 10, or from its cancellation or
termination in its entirety in any other manner, whichever shall first happen.

DEFINITION OF EMPLOYEE:

SECTION 4. The word Employee or Employees, as used in this bond, shall be deemed to mean, respectively, one
or more of the natural persons (except directors or trustees of the Insured, if a corporation, who are not also
officers or employees thereof in some other capacity) while in the regular service of the Insured in the ordinary
course of the Insured’s business during the term of this bond, and whom the Insured compensates by salary, or
wages and has the right to govern and direct in the performance of such service, and who are engaged in such
service within any of the States of the United States of America, or within the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico,
the Virgin Islands, or elsewhere for a limited period, but not to mean brokers, factors, commission merchants,
consignees, contractors, or other agents or representatives of the same general character.

FRAUDULENT OR DISHONEST ACT:

SECTION 5. A FRAUDULENT OR DISHONEST ACT OF AN EMPLOYEE OF THE INSURED SHALL MEAN
AN ACT WHICH IS PUNISHABLE UNDER THE CRIMINAL CODE IN THE JURISDICTION WITHIN
WHICH ACT OCCURRED, FOR WHICH SAID EMPLOYEE IS TRIED AND CONVICTED BY A COURT OF
PROPER JURISDICTION.

MERGER OR CONSOLIDATION:

SECTION 6. If any natural persons shall be taken into the regular service of the Insured through merger or
consolidation with some other concern, the Insured shall give the Surety written notice thereof and shall pay an
additional premium on any increase in the number of Employees covered under this bond as a result of such
merger or consolidation computed pro rata from the date of such merger or consolidation to the end of the
current premium period.

NON-ACCUMULATION OF LIABILITY:

SECTION 7. Regardless of the number of years this bond shall continue in force and the number of premiums
which shall be payable or paid, the liability of the Surety under this bond shall not be cumulative in amounts
from year to year or from period to period.

Form 1432-10-2002
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Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response

March 1, 2013

Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement
602 North Fifth Street
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802

Dear Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement:

This memo is to state our compliance with your policy to provide a
checking account for sub-grant funds where at least two (2)
signatures are required for issuance of checks. Please note that this
policy is already in place and is stated in STAR’s Governance Policies
(attached is full policy for your review). | have pasted the applicable
policy below as a quick reference.

4.4.1 Check-Signing Authority

The Executive Director and Members of the Executive Committee
are authorized to sign checks. All checks require the signature of the
Executive Director or Board Treasurer, along with one other Executive
Committee member. Any check payable to the Executive Director
or a Member of the Executive Committee must be signed by a
different authorized Member.

The members who are authorized to sign checks include:
Racheal Hebert, Executive Director

Mary Erlingson, Board President

Tommy Naquin, Board Treasurer

Mark Dumaine, Board Secretary

Please contact me with any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

"It

Racheal Hebert
Executive Director

8281 Goodwood Blvd. e 2"d Floor, Suite | e Baton Rouge, LA 70806 e P: (225) 615-7093 e F: (225) 615-7236 ¢ www.brstar.org



http://www.brstar.org/



Proposed Governance Policies January 2013

Sexual Trauma Awareness & Response

GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

REVIEWED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FEBRUARY 6, 2013





Proposed Governance Policies

TABLE OF CONTENTS

January 2013

[. INTRODUCTION

Il. GOVERNANCE
2.1 Organizational Evaluation

I1l. BOARD MEMBERSHIP
3.1 Board Officers
3.2 Specific Responsibilities of Board Members
3.3 New Board Members
3.4 Orientation of New Members
3.5 Legal and Ethical Compliance
3.5 Due Diligence

oo ohw

IV. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
4.1 Fiscal Year
4.2 Annual Budget
4.3 Operating Accounts
4.4 Expenditure Authorization and Disbursements Policy
4.5 Fundraising
4.6 Gift Acceptance Policy

oo ~N~NO O

V. PERSONNEL
5.1 Employment Polices
5.2 Executive Director
5.3 Staff
5.4 Volunteers

11
11
11

APPENDICES
l. Code of Ethics
Il Conflict of Interest Policy
M. Whistleblower Policy
V. Document Retention and Destruction Policy






Proposed Governance Policies January 2013

[. INTRODUCTION

Governance policies provide the “how to” for the organization to function properly. They serve
as an adjunct to the by-laws. These governance policies are designed to help keep Board
Members accountable as trustees of the organization. In addition to these policies, each Board
Member has received and agreed to uphold the following policies: Conflict of Interest, Code of
Ethics, Whistleblower, and Document Destruction. You will find copies of these polices in the
appendix section of this document.

[I. GOVERNANCE

The Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response (STAR) is governed by its Board of Directors. The
Board is responsible for overseeing the mission and purpose of STAR. Its duties include
participation in strategic planning and making policy decisions, then securing the financing of
them and the monitoring of their execution. Members must be willing to attend the requisite
meetings, follow through on commitments, and participate fully in the decision-making process.
The Board also presents the organization’s image to the community and solicits its support in
achieving STAR’s goals.

2.1 Organizational Evaluation

2.1.1 Policy Evaluation

The Board Development Committee is responsible for ensuring the Board by-laws and
governance policies support the mission and goals of the organization. Therefore, it is the
responsibility of the Board Development Committee to monitor and update policies and
recommend necessary changes to the Board for approval.

2.1.2 Board Evaluation

Each Board Member shall complete an annual evaluation of the Board. Evaluation forms shall
be completed prior to the last quarter meeting of the Board and given to the Board President for
review. The Board President will perform individual Board Member evaluations as needed.

2.1.3 Personnel Evaluations

The Board President shall perform an annual evaluation of the STAR Executive Director to be
submitted to the Board for approval. The STAR Executive Director shall perform evaluations on
STAR staff annually.

[ll. BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The STAR Board of Directors shall consist of five (5) to fifteen (15) Members. The STAR Board strives
to include Members who represent the diverse populations served through STAR’s programs and
services. In addition, the STAR Board is committed to maintaining diversity among its Members,
including Members of different genders, races, ages, disabilities, sexual identities and
expressions, income status, occupations, program participant status and geographic areas.

3.1 Board Officers
The STAR Board of Directors is led by a group of officers elected each year. These officers—the

President, Vice-President, Treasurer, and Secretary—are nominated by the governing Board and
voted on at the last meeting of the fiscal year. Board officers serve one-year terms beginning on
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July 1st and ending on June 30t of the following year. Officers may serve up to two consecutive
terms.

Board officers make up the Executive Committee of the Board and have signing privileges on
the STAR bank account.

3.2 Specific Responsibilities of Board Members

3.2.1 Meetings
The STAR Board shall meet a minimum of 4 times per year. Every Standing Committee shall meet
a minimum of 6 times per year.

3.2.2 Attendance

Each Member is expected to attend and be active at all Board meetings. Every Board Member
is expected to serve on at least one committee and attend its meetings. Any Board Member
missing two (2) meetings (Board or Committee) in a year without reasonable cause and
advanced notice, shall be notified in writing by the President of the Board that a third
unexcused absence in that year will constitute automatic resignation. If reasonable cause
excuses exceeds four (4), the Member may be asked to resign from the Board.

3.2.3 Dues
Each Board Member is responsible for contributing a minimum financial contribution annually,
due in July of each year.

3.2.4 Standing Committees

Each Board Member shall serve on at least one committee. Each committee shall submit a
written report of actions/recommendations to the Executive Committee prior to each Board
meeting. The full committee list with descriptions follows:

Executive Committee
President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, and the most recent Past President
May transact all regular business during the period between Board meetings.

Finance and Personnel Committee

Chaired by the Treasurer

Responsible for the financial welfare of the agency, personnel policies and for the
Executive Director’s annual review.

Community Relations and Fundraising Committee
Responsible for establishing outreach priorities, promoting agency relationships, and
planning fundraising campaigns.

3.2.5Terms
STAR Board members are divided into 3 classes:

Class 1: 2 year term
Class 2: 3 year term
Class 3: 4 year term
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3.3 New Board Members

The Board will, as director vacancies occur or are anticipated, review the needs of the Board
for specific expertise, resources or skills necessary to bring strength and balance to the Board.
The Board President will maintain a file of all interested candidates who have been so reviewed.
New Board Members are expected to have served on previous Boards or committees, or have a
demonstrated history of community service.

3.4 Orientation of New Members

New Board Members shall receive a thorough orientation conducted by another Board member
within one month of becoming a Member of the Board. Each new Member shall also be
assigned a more experienced Member to guide and help integrate the new Member and
answer any questions he or she may have about Board procedures. New Members will be given
a Board of Directors manual.

3.5 Legal & Ethical Responsibilities

STAR is classified, under the Internal Revenue Code, as a 501 (c) (3) public charitable
organization. The STAR Board assumes many legal and ethical responsibilities in accepting the
position as director.

Any board director is a fiduciary of that corporation, has a fiduciary duty, and acts in a fiduciary
capacity.

= Fiduciary (n.)—A person having duty, created by his/her undertaking, to act primarily for
another’s benefits in matters connected with such undertaking.

= Fiduciary Capacity—One is said to act in a “fiduciary capacity” when the business which
he or she transacts, or the money or property which he or she handles, is not his or her
own or for his or her benefit, but for the benefit of another person, as to whom he or she
stands in a relation implying and necessitating great confidence and trust on the one
part, and a high degree of good faith on the other part.

= Fiduciary Relation—An expression including both technical fiduciary relations and those
informal relations that exist whenever one individual trusts and relies upon another. It
exists where there is special confidence reposed in one who in equity and good
conscience is bound to act in good faith and with due regard to interests on one
reposing the confidence.

3.6 Due Diligence

Each Board Member is expected to become an active participant in a body that functions
effectively as a whole. In addition, Members are responsible to exercise due diligence in the
performance of their duties, including to:

¢ Be informed of the articles of incorporation and legislation under which the organization
exists, its by-laws, mission, values, code of conduct, and policies as they pertain to the
duties of a Board Member.
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o Keep informed about the activities of the organization and the community, and general
trends in the business in which it operates.

o Attend Board meetings regularly, serve on committees of the Board and contribute
financially, personally, professionally to the work of the Board.

e Exercise the same degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person
would show in comparable circumstances.

o Offer their personal perspectives and opinions on issues that are the subject of Board
discussion and decision.

e Voice, clearly and explicitly at the time a decision is being taken, any opposition to a
decision being considered by the Board.

¢ Maintain solidarity with fellow Members in support of a decision that has been made in
good faith in a legally constituted meeting, by Members aware of the relevant facts.

o Ask the Members to review a decision, if he/she has reasonable grounds to believe that
the Board has acted without full information or in a manner inconsistent with its fiduciary
obligations, and, if still not satisfied after such review, ask that the matter be placed
before the Membership.

e Know and respect the distinction in the roles of Board and staff consistent with the
principles underlying these governance policies.

e Exercise vigilance for and declare any apparent or real personal conflict of interest in
accordance with the organization’s bylaws and policies.

V. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

4.1 Fiscal Year
The fiscal year of STAR shall be July 1 - June 31.
4.2 Annual Budget

The Executive Committee shall propose an annual budget for approval at the Board of
Directors’ last quarter meeting. If the proposed budget includes more expenses than income,
the Executive Committee shall develop a method to resolve the imbalance in order to present a
balanced budget for Board approval within 30 days.

The Board of Directors shall authorize funds and amounts that will be available for the
organization’s operations during the fiscal year. Authorization to approve any expenditure
exceeding approved budget shall be done as follows:

1) Expenditures up to $500 in excess of budget will require a majority vote of the Executive
Committee for approval.

2) Expenditures over $500 in excess of budget will require a majority vote of the Board of
Directors for approval.

3) In either case, the source of funds must be identified and any required action taken, in
accordance with the By-laws and this Financial Management Policy.
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4.3 Operating Accounts

The Executive Committee shall oversee the management of revenues and expenses on a
quarterly basis to ensure the mission of the organization is being upheld. The Board shall ensure
the proper and adequate discharge of fiscal management through its Treasurer acting on
behalf of and reporting to the Board. In accordance with Board approved policies and under
the oversight of the Executive Committee, the Executive Director shall be responsible for the
day-to-day management of the required disbursements and operating accounts. The Executive
Director shall report all transactions and current account balances to the Board of Directors at
each regular meeting of the Board. As necessary, the Executive Director shall make transfers
between operating accounts and disburse funds through the checking account to maintain
Board-approved and budgeted programs.

4.4 Expenditure Authorization and Disbursements Policy

Expenditures shall be made only for valid transactions. The disbursement procedures ensure that
no unauthorized payments are made, that complete records are made of each payment, and
that payments are recorded in the appropriate period. Additionally, physical access to cash
and checks must be restricted to authorized personnel.

4.4.1 Check-Signing Authority

The Executive Director and Members of the Executive Committee are authorized to sign checks.
All checks require the signature of the Executive Director or Board Treasurer, along with one
other Executive Committee member. Any check payable to the Executive Director or a Member
of the Executive Committee must be signed by a different authorized Member.

4.4.2 Automatic Payments
For those transactions that are expected to occur on a monthly recurring basis, the Board will
allow the Executive Director to enroll in automatic payments.

4.4.3 Deposit of Funds
All funds received by STAR shall be deposited at a minimum frequency of weekly by the
Executive Director or a designated Member of the Executive Committee.

4.4.4 Withdrawal of Funds
e All expenditures are to be made by check.
e Credit card purchases will be used at the discretion of the Executive Director only.
o All expenditures are to be approved and supported by documentation.
e The following procedures are prohibited:
o0 Checks payable to “bearer” or “cash”
0 Checks signed in blank
0 Altered checks
e All checks should be sequentially pre-numbered and recorded in a log as issued.
e The person performing the bank reconciliation should ensure that all checks are
accounted for.
e Supplies of checks, when not in use, shall be properly safe guarded at all times in a
locked drawer or safe.

4.5 Fundraising
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The Board of Directors is responsible for obtaining sufficient resources for the organization to
finance its programs adequately.

4.5.1 Fundraising

Each Board Member is responsible for participating in all fund development activities created by
the Board. In addition, Members shall assist in soliciting donations and contributions for the
organization.

4.5.2 Events and Fundraisers

The Board of Directors is expected to host, attend, and solicit participation to all STAR fundraisers.
Any proposed fundraiser should be budgeted appropriately and approved by the Board prior to
making any commitments or releasing any publicity.

4.5.3 Grants
Grant proposals shall be prepared and submitted on an as-needed basis to fund STAR programs
and projects. All grant proposals are to be submitted by the Executive Director.

4.5.4 Membership

STAR has set levels for Membership that are listed on the STAR website. Board Members are
responsible for expanding Membership each year. All Membership is annual and expires at the
Membership 1-year anniversary date.

4.6 Gift Acceptance Policy

STAR actively solicits gifts and grants to further the mission of the organization. There is the
potential that the acceptance of certain gifts could compromise the ability of the organization
to accomplish its goals or could jeopardize its exempt status. Hence, these guidelines have been
established as parameters for the solicitation, receipt, acceptance, management, reporting,
use and disposition of charitable contributions to STAR. The STAR Board of Directors:

e Guarantees that all donors are treated fairly and equitably.

¢ Avoids misunderstandings concerning the kinds of gifts that can be accepted and
credited on behalf of STAR.

e Ensures that charitable contribution totals accurately reflect the real value of every gift.

e Encourages donors to make the largest gifts possible in forms that may be the most
convenient for them.

e Establishes that certain gifts must be reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors.

e Assures that requests for gifts or grants are made within ethical business, professional and
philanthropic practices, avoiding conflicts of interest in present or future relationships.

e Assures that, where tax liability and/or estate consequences are a factor, potential
donors be advised to contact their own legal and/or tax advisors.

e Protects STAR’s tax-exempt status from possible abuse by donors.

No financial donations or in-kind contributions grant influence on or authority over STAR
operations.

4.6.1 Pursuit of Gifts

STAR shall accept only those gifts, the transference and implementation of which, shall be
deemed consistent with the public laws and/or regulations and/or public policy of the
respective incorporating state and federal governments. STAR reserves the right to decline any
financial commitment, gift, or bequest, as well as the right to determine how a gift will be
credited and/or recognized.
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The primary consideration in the pursuit of gifts is how they can benefit the organization in the
most ethical and unencumbered manner. To that end, the following caveats must be
considered:

e Core Values: Is the gift one that is consistent with the organization’s standards, principles
and core values?

o Compatibility of Cause: Will the gift unnecessarily challenge the organization’s ability to
further its mission, goals or objectives?

e Public Relations: Does the acceptance of the gift present the organization in an
unfavorable light? Does it appear that there may exist a conflict of interest between the
donor and the organization?

e Motivation: Is there clear charitable intent and a commitment to the organization?

e Consistency: Will the acceptance of the gift be compatible and in agreement with other
fundraising activities or gifts of the organization?

e Credibility: Are the circumstances surrounding the donor and the gift believable?

¢ Organizational Stability: If controversy develops, will it be significant enough to weaken
the structure of the organization? Are any strings attached unduly burdensome?

e Form of Gift: Will the nature of the in-kind contribution create problems?

e Source of Gift: Who is the donor? Is the gift from an individual or a corporation? Does the
donor represent a perceived conflict of interest, or might the donor’s objectives not fit
with the mission of the organization?

e Bottom Line: Gifts can encourage others to give or do the opposite. What effect will the
particular gift have on the organization’s bottom line?

4.6.2 Authority

The Board of Directors and Executive Director are authorized to solicit funds in the name of STAR.
The Board President or his/her designee is authorized to enter into planned gift agreements on
behalf of STAR and to execute any and all documents necessary or appropriate to consummate
such agreements. Any exceptions to these Gift Acceptance Policies may be made only in
exceptional circumstances, on an individual basis, and shall require the approval of the
Executive Committee.

4.6.3 Types of Commitments Accepted

Unrestricted gifts shall be encouraged, unless (1) the donor indicates that he or she is willing to
make a restricted gift only, or (2) the option of a restricted gift will otherwise significantly increase
the chances of obtaining a gift from the donor.

e Cash: Outright gifts of cash will be reported at face value.

e Pledges: Pledges will be recorded at the full value of the commitment upon receipt of
the pledge (in conformity with IRS guidelines), provided they are to be paid within the
stated pledge period. Pledges will ordinarily be expected to be paid in full within the
pledge period, normally a one-year period. Under rare special circumstances, and with
the approval of the Board of directors, a donor may make a pledge commitment that
will extend payments beyond a one-year period.

e Appreciated Property: Gifts of real estate or tangible personal property, which are
accepted by STAR, will be reported at the appraised fair market value as determined by
a qualified appraiser. Donors are responsible for obtaining their own appraisals for tax
purposes of real property or tangible or intangible personal property being given to STAR
and for any fees or other expenses related to such appraisals. STAR retains the right to

10
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obtain its own qualified appraisals of real property or tangible or intangible personal
property being offered as a gift, at its own expense. STAR will acknowledge receipt of
gifts of tangible personal of real property in accordance with IRS requirements and will
sign any IRS form or other documents necessary for the donor to obtain a tax deduction
for such gifts, so long as such acknowledgment does not entail valuing the gift.

o Gifts of tangible personal property (art, furniture, books, stamps, coins, libraries and other
collections) must be accompanied by a fund equal to 25 percent of the assessed
valuation to cover insurance, maintenance, handling, storage and other costs. Also,
such gifts must be accompanied by a statement permitting the Board of Directors to
dispose of the gifts when they have served both the intent of the donor and STAR.

e Gifts ofimmovable property (residences, farms, ranches or resorts, undeveloped or
commercial real estate) shall be encouraged, but the costs of transfer, maintenance,
etc., must be borne by the donor. The Executive Committee must be prepared to
receive, hold, manage and resolve such gifts to the maximum advantage of STAR,
including the retention of an external manager. These guidelines pertain to gifts of real
estate in general:

o The donor shall secure a qualified appraisal of the property.

0 STAR (or trustee in case of a charitable remainder or charitable trust) shall
determine if the donor has clear title to the property.

o All gifts of commercial real estate will be subjected to an environmental audit,
the cost of which is to be borne by the donor, and the results of which shall be
provided to the Executive Committee.

0 Mortgaged property may be accepted as an outright gift provided that the
property has sufficient equity to justify assumption of the liability, and provided
that the property is marketable.

0 Charitable Income Trusts: Donors of charitable income trusts will receive annual
credit for all payments scheduled to be made to STAR on a yearly basis.

o Non-cash Donations: In-kind gifts will be valued at the donor-designated amount
for non-capital contributions. In-kind donations will be counted separately from
outright cash, pledges and other gifts.

4.6.4 Council of Tax Advisor

There are a wide variety of ways in which a donor may make a gift to STAR. Because each
individual’s financial and tax-planning circumstances can vary widely, donors shall be strongly
encouraged in all cases to consult with their own independent legal and/or tax advisors about
proposed gifts, including tax and estate planning implications of the gifts. No representative of
STAR shall presume to act as sole tax or legal advisor to any donor or prospective donor.

4.6.5 Restricted Gifts

In drafting instruments giving restricted gifts to STAR, donors and their advisors shall be
encouraged to use language that would permit application of the gift to a more general
purpose if, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the designated purpose is no longer feasible.

4.6.6 Gifts to Other Organizations

STAR will not accept donations restricted to the use of another organization, except for the
situation in which STAR has a formal, written statement (contract, interagency agreement, etc.)
regarding its relationship to and responsibilities for the other entity.

4.6.7 Commissions and Finder’s Fees

11
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STAR will pay no commissions or finder’s fees as consideration for directing a gift to STAR or to
any of STAR’s affiliates. This does not apply to grants.

4.6.8 Related Fees
Prospective donors shall be responsible for their own legal, accounting, appraisal, transportation
and other fees related to STAR.

4.6.9 Recognition
e Donors of $25.00 or more may receive special forms of recognition at the discretion of,
and as determined by the Executive Committee.
e Donors of $100.00 or more will be recognized alphabetically in a printed donor honor roll
during and at the end of each calendar year or special campaign.

4.6.10 Donor Confidentiality and Anonymity

All information about donors and prospective donors, including but not limited to their names,
the names of their beneficiaries, the nature and amounts of their gifts, and the sizes of their
estates, will be kept strictly confidential by STAR and its representatives, unless the donor grants
permission to release such information and with the exception of donor recognition practices. All
requests by donors for anonymity will be honored, except to the extent that STAR is legally
required to disclose the identity of donors.

V. PERSONNEL

5.1 Employment Policies

All STAR employees are given copies of the Employee Handbook, which includes polices
pertaining to employment. This Handbook includes information regarding working conditions,
employee benefits, sick leave, vacation, employee evaluation, grievance procedures,
confidentiality, and employee growth and development. All staff and volunteers are required to
complete mandatory sexual assault advocacy training within six (6) months of their hire date.

5.2 Executive Director

The STAR Board shall hire, set compensation for, and evaluate the Executive Director. The Board
shall select the Executive Director based on the applicant’s ability to perform the required duties
outlined in the Executive Director’s job description. The Executive Director’s compensation is
based on salary standards compiled by the Louisiana Foundation Against Sexual Assault
(LaFASA). The Board President shall perform the Executive Director’s annual performance review.
5.3 Staff

The Executive Director hires and evaluates STAR staff. All Staff members shall be given a written
job description and Employee Handbook. Staff compensation is based on salary standards
compiled by the Louisiana Foundation Against Sexual Assault (LaFASA).

5.4 Volunteers

STAR utilizes volunteers in several capacities. All volunteers are given copies of the STAR
Volunteer Policies. The Volunteer Coordinator trains, manages, and evaluates volunteers.

12
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APPENDIX I: CODE OF ETHICS

Mission

The mission of the Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response (STAR) is to provide an empathetic
support system to survivors of sexual assault and promotes rape awareness and prevention
education programs in the Baton Rouge community..

Code of Ethics

Given its mission, STAR has adopted a code of ethics to guide its Board Members, committee
Members and staff in their conduct when acting on behalf of STAR. The Code contains broad
principles reflecting the types of behavior STAR expects towards constituents, donors,
employees, peers and the public.

This policy is not intended as a stand-alone policy. It does not embody the totality of STAR’s
ethical standards, nor does it answer every ethical question or issue that might arise. Rather, it is
one element of a broader effort to create and maintain a quality organization that gives ethical
conduct the highest priority. This Code will be reviewed periodically.

Board Members, committee Members and staff should:

1. Listen to our stakeholders and make all reasonable efforts to satisfy their needs and
concerns within the scope of our mission, and to strive for excellence and innovation and
demonstrate professional respect and responsiveness to constituents, donors and others.

2. Make an effort to understand, respect and support our constituents from other cultures,
exemplified by the contributions of our staff and executive leadership, and to contribute
to an organizational culture that respects the diverse, individual contributions of staff and
leadership.

3. Respect the confidentiality of sensitive information about STAR, its Members, constituents,
donors, Board and employees.

4. Comply with applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and fiduciary
responsibilities in an effort to create transparency in all of our operations.

5. For the Board of directors, provide credible and effective oversight to the organization’s
work without personal bias.

6. Not accept commissions, gifts, payments, loans, promises of future benefits or other items
of value from anyone who has or may seek some benefit from STAR in return, other than
occasional gifts of nominal value that are in keeping with good business ethics.

7. Abide by the governing documents and policies of STAR.

8. Be accountable for adhering to this Code of Ethics.

9. Implement and follow a Conflict of Interest Policy.

10. Implement and follow a Whistleblower Policy.

11. Act at all times in accordance with the highest ethical standards and in the best interest
of STAR, its Members, constituents, donors and reputation.

12. Openly and honestly tell the truth.

13. Honor our commitments and promises to the best of our abilities.

14. Appropriately acknowledge contributions from other individuals and organizations who
help facilitate our goals.

15. Not be deceptive in our fundraising activities or in prospecting for new Members to join
STAR.

16. Not lobby with the intent to influence individual candidates.

13
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Compliance, Monitoring and Reporting

STAR management is responsible for communicating this Code of Ethics to all Members of the
Board of directors, standing committee Members, as well as staff, staff interns and staff
volunteers and for ensuring its adherence at all times.

14
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APPENDIX II: CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

Article |
Purpose

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt Organization’s interest
when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the
private interest of an officer or director of the Organization or might result in a possible excess
benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state
and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable
organizations.

Article I
Definitions

1. Interested Person
Any director, principal officer, or member of a committee with governing board
delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an
interested person.

2. Financial Interest

a. A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through
business, investment, or family:

b. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Organization has
a transaction or arrangement,

c. A compensation arrangement with the Organization or with any entity or
individual with which the Organization has a transaction or arrangement, or

d. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement
with, any entity or individual with which the Organization is negotiating a
transaction or arrangement.

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not
insubstantial.

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Article lll, Section 2, a person
who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing
board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.

Article Il
Procedures

1. Duty to Disclose
In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must
disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all
material facts to the directors and members of committees with governing board
delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists
After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion
with the interested person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee
meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The
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remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.

3. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest

a. An interested person may make a presentation at the governing board or
committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting
during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement
involving the possible conflict of interest.

b. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate,
appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the
proposed transaction or arrangement.

c. After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine
whether the Organization can obtain with reasonable efforts a more
advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not
give rise to a conflict of interest.

d. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible
under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or
committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors
whether the transaction or arrangement is in the Organization’s best interest, for
its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the
above determination it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the
transaction or arrangement.

16
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APPENDIX [II: WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY

If any Board Member or staff Member reasonably believes that some policy, practice, or activity
STAR is in violation of law, a written complaint may be filed by with the Board President.

It is the intent of STAR to adhere to all laws and regulations that apply to the organization, and
the underlying purpose of this policy is to support the organization's goal of legal compliance.
The support of all employees is necessary to achieving compliance with various laws and
regulations. An employee is protected from retaliation only if the employee brings the alleged
unlawful activity, policy, or practice to the attention of STAR and provides STAR with a
reasonable opportunity to investigate and correct the alleged unlawful activity. The protection
described below is only available to employees that comply with this requirement.

STAR will not retaliate against an employee who, in good faith, has made a protest or raised a
complaint against some practice of STAR, or of another individual or entity with whom STAR had
a business relationship, on the basis of a reasonable belief that the practice is in violation of law
or a clear mandate of public policy.

STAR will not retaliate against an employee who discloses or threatens to disclose to a supervisor
or a public body any activity, policy, or practice of STAR that the employee reasonably believes
is in violation of a law, or a rule, or regulation mandated pursuant to law or is in violation of a
clear mandate or public policy concerning health, safety, welfare, or protection of the
environment.
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APPENDIX IV: DOCUMENT RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION POLICY
|. PURPOSE

This policy provides for the systematic review, retention and destruction of documents received
or created by STAR in connection with the transaction of organization business. This policy covers
all records and documents, regardless of physical form (including electronic documents),
contains guidelines for how long certain documents should be kept and how records should be
destroyed. The policy is designed to ensure compliance with federal and state laws and
regulations, to eliminate accidental or innocent destruction of records and to facilitate STAR’s
operations by promoting efficiency and freeing up valuable storage space.

II. DOCUMENT RETENTION
STAR follows the document retention procedures outlined below. Documents that are not listed,
but are substantially similar to those listed in the schedule will be retained for the appropriate

length of time.

[lI. CORPORATE RECORDS

Annual Reports to Secretary of State/Attorney General Permanent
Articles of Incorporation Permanent
Board Meeting and Board Committee Minutes Permanent
Board Policies/Resolutions Permanent
By-laws Permanent
Construction Documents Permanent
Fixed Asset Records Permanent
IRS Application for Tax-Exempt Status (Form 1023) Permanent
IRS Determination Letter Permanent
State Sales Tax Exemption Letter Permanent
Contracts (after expiration) 7 years
Correspondence (general) 3years
Accounting and Corporate Tax Records

Annual Audits and Financial Statements Permanent
Depreciation Schedules Permanent
General Ledgers Permanent
IRS 990 Tax Returns Permanent
Business Expense Records 7 years

IRS 1099s 7 years
Journal Entries 7 years
Invoices 7 years
Sales Records 5 years
Petty Cash Vouchers 3 years
Cash Receipts 3 years
Credit Card Receipts 3years
Bank Records

Check Registers Permanent
Bank Deposit Slips 7 years
Bank Statements and Reconciliation 7 years

Electronic Fund Transfer Documents

7 years
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Payroll and Employment Tax Records
Payroll Registers

State Unemployment Tax Records
Earnings Records

Garnishment Records

Payroll Tax returns

W-2 Statements

Employee Records

Employment and Termination Agreements

Retirement and Pension Plan Documents

Records Relating to Promotion, Demotion or Discharge
Accident Reports and Worker’s Compensation Records
Salary Schedules

Employment Applications

[-9 Forms

Time Cards

Donor Records and Acknowledgement Letters

Grant Applications and Contracts

Legal, Insurance and Safety Records
Appraisals

Copyright Registrations
Environmental Studies

Insurance Policies

Real Estate Documents

Stock and Bond Records

Trademark Registrations

Leases

General Contracts

January 2013

Permanent
Permanent
7 years
7 years
7 years
7 years

Permanent

Permanent

7 years after termination
5 years

5 years

3 years

3 years after termination
2 years

7 years

5 years after completion

Permanent

Permanent

Permanent

Permanent

Permanent

Permanent

Permanent

6 years after expiration
3 years after termination
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IV. ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS

Electronic documents will be retained as if they were paper documents. Therefore, any
electronic files, including records of donations made online, that fall into one of the document
types on the above schedule will be maintained for the appropriate amount of time. If a user
has sufficient reason to keep an email message, the message should be printed in hard copy
and kept in the appropriate file or moved to an “archive” computer file folder. Backup and
recovery methods will be tested on a regular basis.

V. EMERGENCY PLANNING

STAR’s records will be stored in a safe, secure and accessible manner. Documents and financial
files that are essential to keeping STAR operating in an emergency will be duplicated or backed
up at least every week and maintained off site.

VI. DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION

STAR’s Board President is responsible for the ongoing process of identifying its records, which
have met the required retention period and overseeing their destruction. Destruction of financial
and personnel-related documents will be accomplished by shredding.

Document destruction will be suspended immediately, upon any indication of an official
investigation or when a lawsuit is filed or appears imminent. Destruction will be reinstated
upon conclusion of the investigation.

VIl. COMPLIANCE

Failure on the part of Board Members, employees or contract staff to follow this policy can result
in possible civil and criminal sanctions against STAR and its Board Members, employees or
contract staff, and possible disciplinary action against responsible individuals. The Treasurer will
periodically review these procedures with legal counsel or the organization’s certified public
accountant to ensure that they are in compliance with new or revised regulations.
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
U. SASP Certified Assurances

SEXUAL ASSAULT SERVICES PROGRAM (SASP) FORMULA GRANT PROGEAM
CERTIFIED ASSURANCES

lAbbreviations:

CFR. Code of Federal Regulations OMB Federal Office of Management and Budget
ILCLE Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement [USC United States Code

IPL Public Law IVAWA Violence Against Women Act

OJP Office of Justice Programs IVAWO Violence Aganst Women Office

THE APPLICANT UNDERSTANDS, AND AGREES, THAT RECEIPT OF A SUBGRANT AS A RESULT OF THIS APPLICATION
SUBJECTS THE APPLICANT TO THE FOLLOWING CERTIFIED ASSURANCES 1 THROUGH 77:

1. ALLOWABLE COSTS. The applicant certifies that any allowable costs incurred under any subgrant shall be determined in accordance with the general

principles of allowable costs and standards for selected cost items set forth in Federal OMB Circular A-87 or A-122, as well as the current edition of the OJP
Financial Guide, and LCLE Policies.

2. ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS FOR REFORM NOW (ACORN). The applicant understands and agrees that it cannot

use any federal funds, either directly or indirectly. in support of any contract or subaward to either the Association of Community Organizations for Reform Now
(ACORN) or its subsidiaries, without prior written approval of OJP. (Federal Memorandum M-10-02 dated October 7, 2009, issued pursuant to Section 163
of the Continuing Appropriations Fesolution, 2010, Division B of PL_ # 111-68 (CR), as well as State of Louisiana Executive Order BJ 09-16 dated
September 17, 2009.)

3. AUDIT CONTRACTS. The applicant understands and agrees that every confract, agreement or understanding to make a study or prepare a report on

behalf of a state agency official, by a private firm, consultant or individual who receives compensation thereof from state, federal, local or other public funds from
whatever source, shall contain or be deemed to contain an authorization for the legislative auditor to audit the records of such firm, consultant or individual

pertaining to such study or report.

4. AUDIT AND INSPECTION. The applicant understands and agrees that Office of Justice Programs, Violence Against Women Office, Louisiana

Commission on Law Enforcement, or any of thetr duly authorized representatives shall have access, for purposes of audit and examination, to any books,

documents, papers, computer software, or records of the subgrantee, and to relevant books and records of contractors.

5. AUDIT REQUIREMENTS. The Applicant agrees to abide by the requirements of the OMB Circular A-133 entitled “Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.™ The effective date of the new OMB Circular A-133 is Julvy 1, 1996, and shall apply to andits for fiscal vears

beginning after June 30, 1996, The audit reports for June 1997 are the first to come under this Circular. The threshold for the single audit requirement is as

follows:

If you have expended $300.000 ($500,000 for fiscal vears ending after December 31, 2003) or more in a vear in Federal awards, you are required to have a
single or program specific (if certain criteria are met) audit conducted for that vear in accordance with the provisions of the OMB Circular A-133.

If an audit discloses findings or recommendations, then a corrective action plan must be submitted along with the andit report and it must include the following:

A The name and telephone number of the contact person responsible for the corrective action plan.

B. Specific steps taken to comply with the recommendations.
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

C. Timetable for performance and /or implementation dates for each recommendation.

D. Descriptions of monitoring to be conducted to ensure implementation.

A copy of the resultant audit report, if applicable, management letter issued by the auditor, corrective action plan and any written responses to the
aforementioned should be forwarded to the Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement. The audit report with attachments should be sent within 30 days after
the completion of the andit, but no later than 9 months after the end of the audited period.

6. CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION (CCR). The applicant understands and agrees that it has and will maintain the Central Contractor
Registration (CCR) registration. This is mandated by the Federal Funds Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006. Information can be obtained at

WL SATT SO

7. CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS. Recipients of funds must comply with any applicable nondiscrimination requirements, which may include the
Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968; the Violence Against Women Act of 1994, PL.. 103-322, the Violence Against Women Act of 2000,

P L. 106-386, and the Violence Against Women and Department of Justice Reauthorization Act of 2005, P.L. 109-162; the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act of 1974; Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of|
1990; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; the Age Discrimination Act of 19735; the Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations at 28
CFR Part42, Subparts C, D, G. and I; 28 CF R Part 35; and 28 C.F R Part 54.

8 COMMINGLING OF FUND. The applicant certifies and agrees there will be no commingling of funds on either a program-by-program basis or a

project-by-project basis. Funds specifically budgeted and/or received for one project may not be used to support another.

9. COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT. The applicant certifies that procurement of contract services and equipment shall be on a competitive basis in

accordance with applicable federal, state, or local procurement regulations, and consistent with policies established by LCLE. Non-competitive procurement
(sole source) must receive prior approval from LCLE. Contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of work, and'or Request for
Proposals (RFPs) for a proposed procurement shall be excluded from bidding or submitting a proposal to compete for the award of such procurement. An

exemption to this regulation requires the prior approval of LCLE and is only given in unusual circumstances, such as when a non-profit organization is acting as

the agent of the state or local unit of government. Anv request for exemption must be submitted in writing to LCLE.

Any state agency or agency of a political subdivision of the state which is using appropriated federal funds must comply with Section 6002 of RCRA. Section
6002 requires that preference be given in procurement programs to the purchase of specific products containing recvcled materials identified in guidelines
developed by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

10. COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS. The applicant certifies that it will comply with all lawful requirements imposed
bv the awarding Federal agency, specifically inchiding any applicable regulations such as 28 C.F R. Part 18 — Office of Justice Programs Hearing and Appeal
Procedures; 28 C.F R. Part 22 Confidentiality of Identifiable Research and Statistical Information; 28 C F R. Part 23 Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating
Policies; 28 C.F R. Part 30 Intergovernmental Review of Department of Justice Programs and Activities; 28 CF R Part 35 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of

Disabilities in State and Local Government Services; 28 C F R. Part 42 Non Discrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies and Procedures; 28
C.F R Part 61 Procedures for Implementing the National Environmental Policy Act; 28 CF R Part 63 Flood Plan Management and Wetland Protection
Procedures, and the Award Term for Trafficking Personsin 2 CF R § 175.15(b).

11. COMPLIANCE WITH POLICY. The applicant certifies that this subgrant shall be subject to the policies and regulations established by the Office of
Justice Programs (OJP), the Office of Violence Against Women (OVW), the Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement (LCLE), and the Victim Services
Advisory Board.

The applicant assures compliance with the applicable guidelines, provisions. policies and requirements aunthorized by the Violence Against Women Act of 1994,
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the Violence Against Women and Department of Justice Reauthorization Act of 2005, P.L. 109-162, OVWs implementing regulations at 28 CFR Part 90, the
current edition of the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW) Financial Grants Management Guide, (and the applicable program guidelines and regulations),

as required. .

12. CONFIDENTIALITY REQUIREMENTS. The applicant agrees to comply with all confidentiality requirements of 42 US C. Section 378%g and 28
C.F R Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information. Applicant further agrees, as a condition of subgrant approval, to

submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28 C.F R. Part 22 and, in particular, section 22.23.

13. CRIME VICTIMS REPARATIONS PROGRANM. The applicant certifies that it will be responsible for providing assistance to victims in regard to

services available through the Crime Victims Reparations Program as appropriate.

14. DATA UNIVERSAL NUMBERING SYSTEM (DUNS NUMBER). All applicants must have a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS

Number). Information can be obtained at www.dnb.com or 1-866-705-5711.

15, DISCRIMINATION FINDING. The applicant assures that in the event that any federal or state court or administrative agency malkes a finding of

discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, sexual orientation, or disability against a recipient of

funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the findings to the Office of Civil Rights Compliance (OCRC), of the Office of Justice Programs.

16. DUAL COMPENSATION. The applicant assures that no contractor will receive dual compensation from his regular emplover and the applicant for

work performed during a single period of time and that adequate documentation will be maintained to verify such.

17. ELIGIBILITY FOR FUNDING. The applicant certifies it has the legal authority to apply for federal assistance and the institutional, managerial, and

financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management, and completion of
the project described in this application.

13, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM. The applicant assures that if required to formulate an Equal Employment Opportunity
Program (EEOP) in accordance with 28 CF R 42 302 et seq.. compliance with the requirement will follow, and a current EEQOP will be maintained on file or

submitted to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice according to applicable requirements. If claiming a partial or
complete exemption from the EEOP requirements, the applicant will submit a copy of the enclosed EEQP Certification Form to the Office for Civil Rights.

19. EQUIPMENT INVENTORY CONTROL. The applicant certifies that any equipment purchased through the subgrant will be tagged. put in an inventory

control system, and identified or distinguished as OJP purchased equipment. When equipment is willfully or negligently lost, stolen, damaged. or destroved, the
subgrantee is responsible for replacing or repairing the equipment. Stolen equipment must be reported to local police, and all resulting reports must be submitted
to LCLE.

20. EQUIPMENT AND OTHER CAPITAL EXPENDITURES. The applicant certifies that a) no other equipment owned by the subgrantee is available

for the project; b) subgrant funds will not be used to provide reimbursement for the purchase price of equipment already owned by the subgrantee except
through permissible depreciation or use allowance actually charged to the subgrantee; c) if equipment is for purposes other than this project, the appropriate
proration of costs to each activity involved will be affected; d) the amount of Federal funds applicable to the purchase or rent of equipment shall be reduced by

any amount received or credited toward the trade-in or sale of older existing equipment which is being replaced as a result of this subgrant; ) funds provided by
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this subgrant will not be used to replace items of equipment purchased with LCLE subgrant funds except as provided for in current VAWA guidance.

21. EQUITABLE TREATMENT. Pursuant to Section 223(a){15) of the JJDP Act, the applicant assures that vouth in the fuvenile justice system are treated

equitably on the basis of gender, race, family income, and mentally, emotionally, or physically handicapping conditions.

22. FAITH-BASED EQUAL TREATMENT REGULATIONS. The grantee agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of 28 CF R Part 38, the
Department of Justice regulation governing “Equal Treatment for Faith Based Organizations™ (the “Equal Treatment Regulation™). The Equal Treatment

Regulation provides in part that Department of Justice grant awards of direct finding may not be used to fund any inherently religious activities, such as worship,
religious instruction, or proselytization. Recipients of direct grants may still engage in inherently religious activities, but such activities must be separate in time or
place from the Department of Justice finded program_ and participation in such activities by individuals receiving services from the grantee or a sub-grantee must
be voluntary. The Equal Treatment Regulation also malees clear that organizations participating in programs directly funded by the Department of Justice are not
permitted to discriminate in the provision of services on the basis of a beneficiary’s religion. Information can be obtained at

www.ofp.goviabout/ocr/equal fbo htm.

Faith-based organizations should also note that the Safe Street Acts, as amended; the Violence Against Women Act, as amended; and the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act, as amended contain prohibition against discrimination on the basis of religion in employment. Despite these nondiscrimination
provisions, the Justice Department has concluded that the Religious Freedom Restoration Act (RFRA) is reasonably construed, on a case-by-case basis, to
require that its finding agencies permit faith-based organizations applving for funding under the applicable program statues both to recetve DOJ funds and to
continue considering religion when hiring staff, even if the statute that authorizes the funding program generally forbids considering of religion in employment

decisions by grantees. For more information on this regulation, please see OQCR website at www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ocr/etfbo. him.

23. FALSE CLAIMS ACT. The applicant must promptly refer to the Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General any credible evidence that a

principal, emplovee, agent, coniractor, subgrantee, subcontractor, or other person has either 1) submitted a false claim for grant funds under the False Claims
Act; or 2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving grant funds.
Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct should be reported to the Office of the Inspector General by: a) Mail- Office of the Inspector General, US
Department of Justice, Investigations Division, 950 Pennsytvania Ave . N.W_, Room 476, Washington, DC 20530; b) Email: oig hotline(@usdoj.gov; ¢) Hotline:
1-800-869-4499 (Phone), 1-202-616-9881 (Fax), or d) Website: www usdoj gov/oig (Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website )

24 FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILTY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT OF 2006 (FFATA). The applicant agrees to comply with applicable

requirements to report first-tier subawards of 525,000 or more and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly
compensated executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients of award funds. Such data will be submitted to the FEATA Subaward Reporting System
(FSRS). The details of recipient obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are posted on the
OJP website at www.ojp.govfindingffata htm_

25. FILING COSTS FOR CIVIL OR CRIMINAL CHARGES. The applicant certifies that, in connection with the prosecution of any misdemeanor or

felony domestic violence offense, the victim will not bear the cost associated with the filing of civil or criminal charges against the domestic violence offender, or
the costs associated with the issuance or service of a warrant, protection order, and witness subpoena (arising from the incident that is the subject of the arrest

or criminal prosecution).

26. FISCAL REGULATIONS. Applicant certifies and agrees that fiscal administration of subgrants shall be subject to such further rules, regulations, and

policies concerning accounting and records, payvment of funds, cost allowance, submittal of financial reports, and any other applicable required documentation

'which mav be prescribed bv the orzanizations and/or publications named in #1 and #3.
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27. FLOOD DISASTER PROTECTION ACT OF 1973 The applicant certifies that flood insurance will be purchased in communities where such

insurance is available as a condition for the construction or acquisition purpose for use. {Flood Disaster Protection Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster

Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234, 87 Stat. 975, approved December 31, 1976)}

28. FORENSIC MEDICAIL EXAMS. The applicant assures that grant funds will not be used to pay for the cost of the forensic medical examination or any

additional procedure for victims of sexual assault. The State, Indian tribal government, or territorial government does not require a victim of sexual assault to
participate in the criminal justice system or cooperate with law enforcement in order to be provided with a forensic medical exam, reimbursement for charges

mcurred on account of such an exam. or both.

29. FUTURE SUPPORT. The applicant understands that the awarding of future funding is contingent upon the availability of future federal appropriations.

30. HATCH ACT. The applicant, if a governmental entity, assures it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. § 1501-8 and § 7324-28, which lmit certain
political activities of State or local government emplovees whose principal employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal

assistance.

31. IMMIGRATION AND NATURALIZATION SERVICES EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION. The applicant agrees to comply
with, and keep on file as appropriate, the Immigration and Naturalization Services Emplovment Eligibility Verification form (I-9). This form is to be used by

recipients of federal funds to verify that persons are eligible to work in the United States.

32. INDIGENT DEFENDERS. The applicant certifies that no subgrant funds will be expended for any federal litigation by any indigent defender or any

expenses inchding travel relate thereto.

33. INTEREST INCOME. Applicant assures that all interest earned on advances will be accountable. Interest Income is not considered Program Income.

Subgrant agencies should only request federal funds for immediate needs. Interest earned on federal funds up to a maximum of $250 a vear for all federal
programs may be kept by the subgrantee. Amounts over $250 must be submitted annually to the United States Department of Health and Human Services,
Division of Payment Management Services, PO Box 6021, Rockville, MD 20852, A copy of any pertinent correspondence must be submitted to LCLE.

Interest on Program Income may be used as match with prior approval from LCLE.

34 LANGUAGE PROFICIENCY (LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICTENCY). In accordance with Department of Justice Guidance pertaining to Title VI
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 20004, recipients of Federal financial assistance nmst take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to their

programs and activities for persons with limited English proficiency (LEP). For more information on the civil rights responsibilities that recipients have in

providing language services to LEP individuals, please see the website at hitp://www.l

35. LOUISIANA AUTOMATED VICTIMS NOTIFICATION SYSTEM (LAVNS). The applicant certifies that it will be responsible for providing

assistance to victims in regard to accessing and using the Louisiana Automated Victims Notification System (LAVINS) as appropriate.

36. MANDATORY REPORTING. The applicant assures compliance with the provisions of Ariicle 609 of the Louisiana Children's Code, which, in part,
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states that all suspected, or known instances of child abuse and/or neglect shall be reported. Reports can be made to the Office of Community Services (OCS),
the Child Abuse Hot Line. or local law enforcement.

37. MATCH. Applicant certifies that the required match is available and dedicated to this project and is not derived from other Federal funds. Current
employee positions transferred to the subgrant shall be replaced or bacldfilled with new employees. The applicant assures that finds required to pay the non-
federal portion (cash match) of the cost of each project for which a subgrant is made shall be in addition to funds that would otherwise be made available for law
enforcement, or other criminal justice efforts by the recipients of the grant funds. Recipients and their subreceipients must maintain records which clearly show

the source, the amount, and the timing of all matching contribution.

38. NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (NEPA). The applicant agrees to aid LCLE in support of Department of Justice’s compliance with
the Federal regulations in regards to the National Environmental Policy Act (INEPA) of 1969 (41 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq.)

39. NATIONAL HISTORIC PRESERVATION. The applicant will comply with the Federal regulations regarding anv minor renovations or remodeling of
a property or structure fiftv vears or older: Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (16 U.5.C § 470), Executive Order 11593
(identification and protection of historic properties), the Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. § 469 a-1 et seq.), and the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. § 4321).

40. NEW PROGRANM RESOURCES. The applicant, if it is a new program that has not vet demonstrated a record of providing services, ceritfies that at

least 25% of its financial support is from non-federal sources.

41. NON-DISCRIMINATION. The applicant assures that it, and all its contractors, will comply with any applicable federal nondiscrimination requirements,
which may include the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, 42 U.S5.C. § 3789d(c); the Violence Against Women Act of 1994 P L. 103-
322, the Violence Against Women Act of 2000, P.L. 106-386, and the Violence Against Women and Department of Justice Reauthorization Act of 2005, P L.
109-162; the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974, 42 US.C. § 5672(b); Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U S.C. § 20004;
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 US.C. § 794; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 US.C. § 12132; Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972, 20 US.C. § 1681; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. § 6102; Department of Justice Non-Discrimination
Regulation at 28 C.F R Part 42, Subparts C. D, G, and I; 28 CF R Part 35; and 28 CF R Part 54

42. NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS. The nonprofit organization applicant agrees to maintain its nonprofit status in “Good Standing™ with the Louisiana

Secretary of State’s Commercial Division for the duration of the project period.

43. OBLIGATION OF SUBGRANT FUNDS. The applicant certifies that subgrant funds mav not, without advance written approval by LCLE, be

obligated prior to the effective date or subsequent to the termination date of the subgrant period. Obligations outstanding as of the termination date shall be
liquidated within 90 days. Such obligation must be related to goods or services provided and utilized within the grant period. No additional obligations can be
incurred after the end of the grant.

44, PATENTS. The applicant assures that if any subgrant produces patents, patent rights, processes or inventions, a report will be made to LCLE from which
a determination will be made as to whether protection of such invention or discovery is necessary in accordance with President's Memorandum of August 23,

1971 (36 P.R. 16389).
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45. PERPETRATOR DEFENSE. The applicant assures that grant funds will not be used for legal or defense services for perpetrators of violence against

WOITET.

46. PERSONNEL. The applicant certifies that specific detailed time and atiendance records, to include overtime, will be maintained on all grant personnel.
Salaries and wages of employees chargeable to more than one grant program must be supported by appropriate time distribution records, which show equitable
distribution of time and effort. The applicant further certifies that appropriate screening will be conducted, as well as background checks, for grant personnel

who have contact with, or access to juveniles associated with the applicant's subgrant in accordance with the most current Louisiana Child Protection Act.

47. PERSONNEL — BACKGROUND CHECKS. The applicant certifies that appropriate screenings will be conducted as well as background checks, for

grant personnel who have contact with or access to juveniles associated with the subgrant in accordance with the most current Louisiana Child Protection Act.

48. PERSONNEL — EXECUTIVE OVERTIME. The applicant assures that executives, such as President or Executive Director of an organization, will not

be reimbursed for overtime or compensatory time under the grant or a respective cooperative agreement.

49. PERSONNEL — OFF-DUTY. The applicant assures that off-dutv personnel who work on this project must work hours which do not conflict with their

regular job work hours.

50. PERSONNEL — OVERTIME. The applicant certifies that all personnel must work hours which does not conflict or overlap with the regular work hours

of the employee. Payment will be on a overtime, hourly basis at a rate not to exceed 1 and ¥ times the emplovee’s regular, hourly rate of pay.

51. POLYGRAPH TESTING PROHIBITION. The applicant certifies that their laws, policies, or practices will ensure that no law enforcement officer,

prosecuting officer or other government official shall ask or require an adult, vouth, or child victim of an alleged sex offense as defined under Federal. tribal,
State, territorial, or local law to submit to a polygraph examination or other truth telling device as a condition for the proceeding with the investigation of such an
offense; or under 42 U.S.C. 379gg-8(b). the refusal of a victim to submit to a polygraph or other truth telling examination shall not prevent the investigation,

charging. or prosecution of an alleged sex offense by a State, Indian tribal government, territorial government, or unit of local government.

52. PRESS RELEASES. The applicant certifies that any statements or press releases describing projects, activities, or results shall name LCLE as the agency|
responsible for making federal funds available for such activity.

53. PROGRANM INCONMIE. The applicant certifies that all income earned, as a direct result of grant-funded activity (sale of publications, registration fees,

asset forfeitures, and/or any other activities that generate program income), will be accounted for and utilized in accordance with the LCLE and the effective
edition of the OJP Financial Guide and, as applicable, either (1) 28 C.F.R. Part 66 or (2) 28 CF.R. Part 70 and 2 C.F R Pari 215 (OMB Circular A-110).
Program income must be reporied on the Subgrant Expenditure Report.

54. PUBLIC AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION. The applicant agrees to comply with all applicable federal regulations and state policies relating to
the public availability of identifiable records or other documents that are pertinent to the receipt and expenditure of subgrant finds.

535. PUBLICATION. Applicants are encouraged to make the results and accomplishments of their activities available to the public. The applicant assures that
where activities supported in whole, or in part, by this subgrant produce books, manuals, films_ videos, plans or other publications, the applicant will comply with
puidelines listed in Chapter 7 of the current OJP Financial Guide as follows: a) Inchision of the statement, "The opinions, findings, and conclusions or
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reflect the views of the Department of Justice or LCLE"; b) An acknowledgment of support shall be made through use of the following, or comparable,
footnote: " This project was supported by Subgrant Number _ awarded by the Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement through the Office on
Violence Against Women, Office af Justice Programs"; c) Submittal of a copy of any boold'manualfilm/~video/plan‘publication/computer software to LCLE,
as well as a publication and distribution plan twenty (20) days prior to publishing or distributing any of the aforementioned items developed under this subgrant.

56. RECORDING AND DOCUMENTATION OF RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES. The applicant certifies that it will give LCLE or the General

Accounting Office, through anv authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all paper or electronic records related to the financial assistance.

The applicant ceriffies that accounting procedures will provide for accurate and timely recording of receipt of funds to include the source, expenditures made
from such funds, and the unexpended balance. Controls must be established which are adequate to insure that expenditures charged to project activities are for
allowable purposes and that documentation is readily available to verify that such charges are accurate.

57. RECORDS MAINTENANCE. The applicant certifies that all required records, with the exception of non-expendable property inventory records, shall
be maintained in accordance with requirements set forth in 28 CFR Ch.1 § 66.3 — “Part 66 — Uniform Administrattve Requirements for Grants and Cooperative

Agreements to State and Local Governments™ (also known as the Grants Management Common Rule for State and Local Units of Government) and 28 CFR
Ch.1 § 702 —“Part 70 — Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements (Inchuding Subawards) with Institntions of Higher Education
Hospitals and Other Non-Profit Organizations.™ All financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to the award,
shall be retained by each organization for AT LEAST THREE YEARS following closure of their most recent audit report. If any litigation claim, negotiation,
audit, or other actions involving the records begin before the expiration of the three-vear period, the records must be retained until completion of the action, or
resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the regular three-vear period, whichever is later. Non-expendable personal property inventory

records must be maintained until final disposition of the property is authorized by OJP/LCLE.

58. RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES. Participation in Justice Department Programs by Religious Organizations; Providing for Equal Treatment for all Justice

Department Program Participant, and kenown as the Equal Treatment Regulation 28 C.F R. Part 38, prohibits faith-based organizations from using financial
assistance from the Department of Justice to fund inherently religious activities. While faith-based organizations can engage in non-finded inherently religious
activities, they must be held separately from the Department of Justice funded programs. and customers or beneficiaries cannot be compelled to participate in
them. The Equal Treatment Regulation also makes clear that organizations participating in programs fimded by the Department of Justice are not permitted to
discriminate in the provision of services on the basis of a beneficiary’s religion. For more information on the regulation, please see QCR website at

www.ojp.usdoj.goviocr/etfbo htm.

59. RELOCATION ASSISTANCE. The applicant assures that it will comply with requirements of the provisions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and
Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970, 84 Stat. 1894, (P.L. 91-646) which provides for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced as a result of federal

or federally assisted programs.

60. RENT. The applicant ceriifies that a) when rental charge is requested, the charge is consistent with the prevailing rate in the local area and documentation
is maintained on file to support such a determination; b) the cost of space procured for program usage may not be charged to the program for periods of non-
occupancy, without anthorization from LCLE; c) rental cost of space cannot be paid if the building is owned by the subgrantee or if the subgrantee has a
substantial financial interest in the property; d) depreciation or use allowance on idle or excess facilities is NOT ALLOWABLE, except when specifically

authorized by LCLE; ) cost of utilities, insurance, security, janitorial services, elevator service, upkeep of grounds, normal repairs and alterations, and the like

are allowable to the extent they are not otherwise included in rental or other charges for space.
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61. REPORTS TO LCLE. The applicant assures that it shall submit, at such times and in such form as may be prescribed, such reporis as LCLE may require,

including monthly or quarterly fiscal reporis, quarterly progress reporis, quarterly program income reports, final fiscal reports, annual performance reports, and
civil rights statistical reports. Quarterly Progress Report s and Expenditure Requests are due within 15 days of the close of the reporting period. Expenditure
Reports are due monthly for subgrants recetving 540,001 or more and at least quarterly for grants $40,000 and below. However, subgrantees with grants
540,000 or less may also submit Expenditure Requests monthly, but nmust request this option, in writing, at the acceptance of the award.

62. SEATBELTS. The applicant assures that it will adopt and enforce a seatbelt policy for emplovees who operate anv vehicle (company-owned, rental, or
personally owned) while on the job. Such policy will require that, if available, safetv restraints shall be used by the driver and passengers of vehicles.

63. SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT. The applicant certifies that any computer software developed under this grant shall be placed in the public domain and

made available to OJP, OJP Grantees, and LCLE for transfer to authorized users in the criminal fustice system without cost other than that directly associated
with the transfer. Systems will be documented in sufficient detail to enable a competent data processing staff to adapt the system, or portions thereof, to usage

on a computer of similar size and configuration of any mamufacturer.

64. SPECIAL CONDITIONS. The applicant certifies that it will abide by and incorporate any additional special conditions and requirements placed on the

applicant agency as a result of a subgrant award or subgrant adjustment.

65. SUPPLANTING. The applicant assures that federal funds will not be used to supplant or replace state or local finds, but will be used to increase the

LOUISIANA COMMISSION ON LAW LCLE USE ONLY
N MEN
ENFORCEMENT Receipt Date Award Date Subgrant Number(s)
Applicant Hereby Applies to the LCLE for Financial T
Support for the Within-Described Project: 3/6/2013 - 1106

1. Tyvpe of Funds for ]
; ! Sexual Assault Services Program (Federal 16.017 SASP )
which you are applying

2. Applicant Name Of Applicant: Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center
Federal LI): 45-3088168 Parish: East Baton Rouge
Street Address Line 1: 233 Saint Ferdinand Street. Room 210
Address Line 2: Address Line 3:
City: Baton Rouge State: LA Zip: T0802-5818
3. Recipient Agencies |Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center
4. Project Director Nassi: Ms: Shacaion Selh Title: Administrator
Agency:
Street Address Line 1: 8281 Goodwood Blvd
Address Line 2: Suite I. 2nd Floor Address Line 3:
City: Baton Rouge State: LA Zip: T0806-7742
Phone: 225-615-7093 Fax: 225-615-7T136 x615 Email: shannon smith(@brstar org
5. Financial Officer N N Rl e ;[;:leet:cffccuﬁve Director
Street Address Line 1: 8281 Goodwood Blve
Address Line 2: Suite [ Address Line 3:
City: Baton Rouge State: LA Zip: T0806-7742
™ AnE ris mann A le  Anr ;12 mans rar A e
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FHOne: £23-013-/UY3 XL [£aX: 2£3-D13-/230 X013 EMAN: facNeal NeDerT (DI SIar. org
6. Contact Name- Ms. Racheal E Hebert iglee;ifecuﬁve Director
Street Address Line 1: 8281 Goodwood Blve
Address Line 2: Suite I Address Line 3:
City: Baton Rouge State: LA Zip: T0806-7742
Phone: 225-615-7093 x2 Fax: 225-615-7236 x615 Email: racheal hebert@brstar.org

7. Brief Summary of |Short Title (May not exceed 50 characters)

Project Sexual Assault Program

(Do Not Exceed Space  STAR requests funding for a Crisis Services Coordinator to provide direct services to sexual assault survivors through legal and medical
Provided) advocacy, and in person crisis intervention counseling. The Crisis Services Coordinator will help ensure that survivors of sexual assanlt are

given appropriate services and referrals.

8. Subgrant Budget TOTAL BUDGET BY CATEGORY 9. TOTAL BUDGET BY FUND SOURCE
BUDGET CATEGORY AMOUNT FUND SOURCE AMOUNT | PERCENT
PERSONNEL 21.793.00 FEDERAL 21.793.00]  100%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 sl Ll
TRAVEL (INCLUDING TRAINING) 0.00 SR I Lileh
EQUIPMENT 0.00 FHEREAT o

- - STATE MATCH 0.00
SUPPLIES & OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00 e e 0
CONSULTANTS 0.00 T i
CONSTRUCTION 0.00 PROJECT INCOME MATCH 0.00
OTHER 0.00 TOTAL 21,793.00( 100%
TOTAL 21,793.00 10. Project Start Date: 4/1/2013 Project End Date: 3/31/2014

11. IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the Applicant has caused this subgrant application to be executed, attested, and ensealed by its proper

officials, pursuant to legal action authorizing the same to be done.

Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center

DATE NAME OF APPLICANT AGENCY

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL

TITLE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL

NOTE: The original copy must be signed in blue ink.
Titles of all signatories must be inserted.

LCLE USE ONLY

In response to this application, LCLE funds are hereby obligated for the project described by the subgrantee in the referenced
application, subject to applicant acceptance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DATE

Louwsiana Commission on Law Enforcement
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

12. BUDGET DETAILS
A. MASTER BUDGETS

BY RECIPIENT AGENCY YEAR 1 TOTAL
Sexual Trauma Awareness and 21.793.00 21,793.00

T eennnees (Center
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AT AT e kA

Total: 21,793.00 21,793.00

Applicant Agency: Scxual Trauma Awareness and Response Center

BY CATEGORY YEAR 1 TOTAL
PERSONNEL 21.793.00 21,793.00
TAMDT NVER RENTRETTS N nn n an
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TRAVEL (INCLUDING 0.00 0.00
TRAINING)
EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00
SUPPLIES & OPERATING 0.00 0.00
EXPENSES
CONSULTANTS 0.00 0.00
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SUBGRANT: 1106

Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

CONSTRUCTION 0.00 0.00
OTHER 0.00 0.00

Total: 21,793.00 21,793.00

BY SOURCE YEAR 1 TOTAL

FEDERAL 21,793.00 21,793.00
STATE 0.00 0.00
PROJECT INCOME 0.00 0.00
INTEREST 0.00 0.00
STATE MATCH 0.00 0.00
CASH MATCH (NEW APPROP.) 0.00 0.00
IN-KIND MATCH 0.00 0.00
PROJECT INCOME MATCH 0.00 0.00

Total: 21,793.00 21,793.00

12. BUDGET DETAILS

A. MASTER

Line Item Details for: Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response Center

YEAR 1

PERSONNEL
COST
Position: Crisis Services Coordinator
Name: Shannon Smith
Computation: 0.50 21.793.00
Personnel - Year 1 Total: 21,793.00
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
COST
Position:
Name:
Computation: 0.00
Employee Benefits - Year 1 Total: 0.00
SUPPLIES & OPERATING EXPENSES
COST

LCLE-200 (08/08)
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Supply Item:
Computation: 0.00

Supplies & Operating Expenses - Year 1 Total: 0.00

CONSULTANTS - CONSULTANT
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COST
Name / Position:
Service Provided:
Computation: 0.00
Consultants - Consultant - Year 1 Total: 0.00
CONSULTANTS - TRAVEL
COST
Consultant:
Location:
Item:
Computation: 0.00
Consultants - Travel - Year 1 Total: 0.00
CONSULTANTS - PRODUCT/SERVICE
COST
Consultant:
Item:
Computation: 0.00
Consultants - Product/Service - Year 1 Total: 0.00
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SUBGRANT: 1106 Short Title: Sexual Assault Program

13. SECTIONS:
A. LCLE Budget Summary No Match

1. Please itemize the Budget Category expenditures.
(Please verify that the Total Amount equals the Calculated Paid Amount )

“ Budget Category Amount Paid with Federal Dollars Calculated Paid Amounts
Personnel [ 21793 |

Tutal. = 21,793 |

13. SECTIONS:
B. LCLE Budget - Personnel

PERSONNEL EUDGET JUSTIFICATION

1. Are personnel costs requested?

Yes

2. Are emplovees screened and in compliance with the Louisiana Child Protection Act (LA RS 15:5871.1)7

Yes

3. Are job descriptions for each position attached?

Yes

4. Are resumes for each position attached?

Yes

4.1. If no. explain why.

5. Explain the need for each position and ustify the need for anv overtime if requested.
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